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Our mission is to always be close to our customers’ hearts, and an indispensable part of their lives.

We aim to make our customers’ lives more comfortable and enjoyable, primarily by displaying hospitality 

in everything we do, so that customers will enjoy every moment they spend in our stores.

We will continue to provide innovative, high-quality products 

and services that make a positive, lasting impression on our customers 

and warm their hearts.

We are working to raise enterprise value through our business activities 

in line with the spirit of “Co-Growing,” by which we mean realizing mutually benefi cial 

relationships with our franchisees, business partners, and employees, 

and thereby fulfi lling our responsibilities to all our stakeholders.

We aim to win the highest trust of the general public 

by observing all laws and ethical norms, raising the level of transparency 

in our business activities, and always upholding the principles of fair competition.

In consideration of the overriding need for environmental preservation, 

we will enthusiastically contribute to the welfare of the local communities 

in which we operate and society as a whole, providing reliable and safe products 

and services to help realize a future full of new possibilities.

We encourage our colleagues to create a vibrant corporate culture by keeping 

abreast of social trends and showing an interest in a wide range of subjects. 

In this way, we are confi dent that our staff  will hit upon good ideas and then act on them.

“FamilyMart, Where You Are One of the Family”

FamilyMart’s Goal

FamilyMart’s Basic Management Policies

FamilyMart’s Action Guidelines

FamilyMart Basic Principles

Our Slogan

“Famimaship”
“Listen, Decide, Act”
“Wholehearted Hospitality”

Exceeding customers’ expectations

Growing together, through mutual trust

Cultivating esthetic sensitivity

Enjoying new challenges

Acting with integrity



FamilyMart at a Glance

Aiming for Sustainable Growth

Cautionary Statement:

This report contains forward-looking statements, including the Company’s strategies, future business plans, and projections. 

Such forward-looking statements are not based on historical facts and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that 

relate to, but are not necessarily confi ned to, such areas as economic trends and consumer preferences in Japan and abrupt 

changes in the market environment. Accordingly, the actual business performance of the Company may substantially diff er 

from the forward-looking statements in this report.
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Net income ROE

Consolidated Financial Highlights

Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2008 2007 2006 2008

Results of operations

   Total operating revenues  319,439  297,849  276,443 3,042,276

   Operating income  31,214  29,609  32,662 297,276

   Net income  16,438  14,969  14,195 156,552

Financial position

   Total assets  351,271  315,256  314,121 3,345,438

   Total equity (Note 2)  191,281  171,155  168,233 1,821,724

Cash fl ow

   Net cash provided by operating activities  49,375  35,093  42,778 470,238

   Net cash used in investing activities  (24,593)  (32,938)  (32,249) (234,219)

   Net cash provided by (used in) fi nancing activities  3,956  (19,155)  (4,238) 37,676

   Cash and cash equivalents  98,844  69,551  86,189 941,371

Per share of common stock (in yen and U.S. dollars)

   Basic net income  173.5  158.8  145.7 1.65

   Cash dividends applicable to the year  60.0  46.0  43.0 0.57

   Total equity (Note 2)  1,921.6  1,771.3  1,736.2 18.30

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries       Years Ended the Last Day of February

Notes:  1. Conversion into U.S. dollars has been made at the exchange rate of ¥105=U.S.$1, the rate prevailing on February 29, 2008.

2. Beginning with the fi scal year ended February 28, 2007, minority interests have been included in total equity.

FamilyMart Annual Report 200802



Total Assets and ROA Equity Ratio Cash Dividends per Share and
Payout Ratio
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2008 2007 2006

Ratio

   Equity ratio (%) 52.2 51.9 53.6

   ROE (return on equity) (%) 9.5 9.0 8.7

   ROA (return on total assets) (%) 4.9 4.8 4.7

   PER (price earnings ratio) (times) 17.8 20.5 25.1

   Payout ratio (%) 34.6 29.0 29.5

Other data

   Number of franchised stores and Company-owned stores 
     (non-consolidated)

6,691 6,501 6,284

   Number of area franchised stores 
     (including overseas area franchised stores)

7,184 6,621 6,168

   Number of stores 13,875 13,122 12,452

   Number of full-time employees 6,647 6,735 6,048

   Number of shareholders 14,933 17,880 17,444

   Issued number of shares (thousands) 97,683 97,683 97,683
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FamilyMart at a Glance

Convenience Stores: An Everyday Necessity

Japan’s first convenience store opened its doors some 

35 years ago. Since then, we have helped to develop the 

format by responding to customers’ needs for greater con-

venience. In addition to our traditional role of supplying 

merchandise, we off er fi nancial services such as ATMs and 

utility payment receipt, and general services such as ticket 

printouts through multimedia terminals. These innovations 

have made us part of the framework of our customers’ 

daily life.

1.

In today's tough competitive environment, only the largest 

convenience store operators with a firm market footing 

will continue to grow. In fi scal 2007, the four largest opera-

tors increased their joint market share (sales) to 79.3%, up 

3.4 points from fi ve years previously. The market position 

of the major operators is clearly becoming more dominant. 

During that period, FamilyMart’s market share rose 1.6 

points to 14.9% in fi scal 2007. 

+

Greater convenience

Time Location Lineup Merchandise

Financial services

General services

A linchpin of local life

A support in emergencies

Sales share by operator (non-consolidated)
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Sales
(Years beginning April 1)

(¥ trillion)(Stores)

Stores

Seven-Eleven Japan LawsonFamilyMart Circle K Sunkus Others

14.9%

11.4%

34.3%

20.7%

18.7%13.3%

12.7%

31.5%

24.1%

18.4%

Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2007

Total sales

¥7.0 trillion

Total sales

¥7.5 trillion

The role of convenience stores

The Convenience Store Sector

The Japanese convenience store market grew rapidly from 

its start in the early seventies up until the 1990s. Today 

there are approximately 40,000 stores across the country, 

and the market is worth approximately ¥7.5 trillion. 

However, in recent years, this growth rate has slackened 

off  amid intensifi ed competition as operators open more 

stores and competition increases with non-sector opera-

tors such as supermarkets and discount stores.

Market Expansion and Maturity Convenience stores: Total number of stores and sales 

Major Operators Dominating Market
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As of February 29, 2008

Japan: 

     7,187 stores

Grand total:
13,875 stores

51.8%48.2%

Overseas Japan

Taiwan:
2,247 stores

South Korea: 
3,787 stores

Thailand: 
507 stores

China:
136 stores

United States: 
11 stores

Overseas total: 
6,688 stores

Overview of FamilyMart 2.

Stores and locations (including area franchisers)

Lineups Based on Food Products

With store openings up to July 2006, we extended our 

network to all 47 prefectures of Japan, making us a truly 

national chain. In addition, while retaining our Japanese 

identity, we aggressively expanded operations overseas, 

as part of eff orts to create a network of 20,000 FamilyMart 

stores overseas. Of our current total of 13,875 stores, ap-

proximately half are now abroad. We aim to further expand 

the ratio of overseas stores.

The FamilyMart Group operates a chain of franchised 

convenience stores, as well as e-commerce and related 

businesses. In a typical store with a retail space of approxi-

mately 115 square meters, the product lineup includes 

approximately 2,600 items, with boxed lunches, drinks and 

other foods accounting for approximately 70% of all sales.

Strong Performance by FamilyMart stores
 (existing store basis)

Due to intensified competition, average daily sales per 

store (on an existing store basis) of all convenience store 

operators have been trending steadily downwards year-

on-year. Finding ways of revitalizing existing stores has 

become a major issue for all store chains. 

 Against this background, growth in daily sales per 

store at FamilyMart’s stores on an existing store basis since 

fi scal 2004 has continued to outpace that of our rivals. With 

0.9% growth in fiscal 2007, we were the only one of the 

four major Japanese convenience store operators to post 

positive growth for that year.

Sales breakdown by product category 
(non-consolidated)

For more information: 

Please see The Pan-Pacifi c Plan  → P.63

Year ended
February 29, 2008

Fast food 3.7%E-commerce 4.9%

Services 2.4%

Non-food 25.8%

Processed food 30.5%

Daily food

32.7%
Sales for all

stores in the chain:

¥1,121.8 billion

Sources:   For all convenience stores: Retail statistical yearbook, Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (one year from April 1st to March 31st) 
For individual store operators: Documents released by company (one year from March 1st to the last day of February) 

Note:  Circle K Sunkus was established through a merger of Circle K and Sunkus in September 2004. All fi gures prior to the year ended February 29, 
2004 are the simple sum of the two founding companies.

Expansion at Home and Abroad

Average daily sales per store 
on an existing store basis (non-consolidated)

Product Category   → P.67
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To Our Stakeholders

great     

Junji Ueda
President and Chief Executive Offi  cer

FamilyMart Annual Report 200806



    Potential for Growth

  Average Number of Customer Visits per Store per Day (total store basis)

Year ended February 28, 2007

I am delighted to report to our stakeholders that FamilyMart’s business is now on a fi rm foot-

ing. In fi scal 2007, a robust performance by existing stores lifted us to increased revenues and 

earnings on both a consolidated and non-consolidated basis. We had designated fi scal 2007 

as the year for building a stronger business foundation, enabling us to join the elite in our sec-

tor in the near future. In this endeavor, we have focused on supporting franchisees by making 

investments in system infrastructure ahead of our rivals, while getting the retailing basics right 

through close collaboration between franchisees and headquarters to give real meaning at 

the store level to the concept of the “FamilyMart feel.” 

 Our strong earnings performance for the term is the result of solid support from our 

customers after years of patient, steady eff ort to build up our business. This is not a fl ash in the 

pan, but refl ects real change, and we at FamilyMart are now convinced that we can continue 

to grow. In this message, while looking back over our achievements to date, I would like 

analyze the underlying reasons and present some thoughts about the future of the Company.

Through renewed commitment to our basic principles, we are 
consolidating our position among the elite companies in the con-
venience store sector.

Year ended February 29, 2008
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Fiscal 2007 was another diffi  cult year for the convenience store sector. In central Tokyo, there are a num-

ber of cases in which several convenience stores belonging to major chains can be found within the same 

10,000 square-meter area, and competition is intensifying both within the sector and with companies 

outside the industry such as supermarkets and restaurants, both in central Tokyo and in provincial cities. 

With the total number of convenience stores in Japan now over 40,000,  competition for remaining good 

locations is growing increasingly fi erce. 

 Traditionally, the convenience store business 

has depended on new store openings for growth. But 

in recent years, I think that the main concern for chain 

operators has been fi nding ways of getting more cus-

tomers into individual stores in each neighborhood. 

 To this end, operators are seeking out new 

business approaches. A major difficulty has been 

translating head office concepts and strategies into 

positives for the franchisees. In this light, our task as 

head offi  ce is to revitalize franchise stores one by one 

and make them the automatic store of choice in their 

neighborhoods. We have been focusing our manage-

ment resources and energies on this endeavor.

  Business Environment and Our Response

Operating Environment and Basic Approaches 

Becoming the Convenience Store of Choice 

Reaping the Fruit of Years of Steady Eff ortRe

Commitment to basics 

Stocking products that customers 

want to buy, at the right time, 

in the right lineups, and providing 

a pleasant shopping experience

Fostering awareness 

Creating a corporate culture in which 

every franchisee, store staff  member, 

and employee devises 

and acts on their own ideas 

for increasing customer satisfaction

Overwhelming strengths 

Creating product categories 

that draw people into stores

 (pasta, fast food and desserts)

Infrastructure 

Tools for greater convenience — 

e-money settlements, 

Famiport Multimedia Terminals, 

and the Famima T Card

An urgent task: Revitalizing franchised stores

Revitalizing individual stores to make them the automatic choice 

for local customers

Market 

maturity

Competition, 

including with 

companies in 

other retail 

sub-categories

Business environment facing the sector

Becoming the convenience store of choice 

Year-on-year downward 

trend in average daily 

sales per store on exist-

ing store basis
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To Our Stakeholders

What does “innovation” mean to FamilyMart? What our customers want is convenience in terms of proxim-

ity and opening hours. But even if a store off ers this kind of convenience, it will not appeal to customers 

if the inside is dirty, staff are unfriendly or if it fails to stock the right products at the right time. Once 

customers are alienated in this way, they will probably go to another chain, or try another kind of store, 

even if it means a longer walk. We have concentrated on increasing the number of stores able to get the 

obvious things 100% right. We are going back to the basics.

 Through rigorous attention to service, quality and cleanliness (SQ&C) and by off ering our services in 

a spirit of hospitality, we aim to create retail spaces that our customers can really enjoy using. We need to 

make them feel that their well-being is what matters to us most.

Reaping the Benefi ts of Steady Eff ort (1)

Commitment to Retailing Basics 

Although we are able to devise a clear vision and strategies on paper, it is not necessarily possible to put 

these ideas and strategies into practice without insistence on getting “back to basics.” To ensure a rigor-

ous, sustained commitment to retailing basics, the most important thing is transforming the attitudes 

of executives, employees, franchisees and partners. By having them show this most careful attention to 

detail, we hope to make FamilyMart stores the friendliest.

 I also believe that companies with smooth communications between the highest and lowest 

levels of the organization are best positioned to survive in the 21st century. Since becoming president, 

I have worked to strengthen direct communication with FamilyMart franchisees as well as with my own 

employees. I visit stores in person anytime of the day or night, without prior notifi cation, and talk directly 

with managers and other senior staff  of franchised stores. In addition, I have organized over 70 “Sessions 

with the President,” in which I talk directly with company staff  primarily on the front line, who work with 

franchisees. During such meetings, no documents are prepared, or notes taken. Employees speak frankly 

to me about their problems and concerns. I listen to them, tell them my future ideas for the Company, and 

encourage individual employees to come up with ideas for making things better. 

 During these sessions, I have often heard employees ask what exactly is meant by “FamilyMart 

feel.” Here were the seeds of the “FamilyMart feel” campaign, launched on a Companywide basis in fi scal 

2005, covering younger and mid-rank staff  of all departments. The goal is to get individual employees to 

Reaping the Benefi ts of Steady Eff ort (2)

From Awareness-Raising to Promoting the “FamilyMart Feel”
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We go to great lengths to ensure that every aspect of our product range has the “FamilyMart feel.” In the 

convenience store industry, we have played catch-up, growing by chasing the leaders. However, even 

though we have reached the highest levels ourselves by imitative methods, our customers’ prejudices make 

them think our products are still inferior to those of leading chains. 

 For that reason, we are now developing product categories with the goal of building an overwhelm-

ing competitive advantage with a true FamilyMart feel, rather than relying on clichéd slogans to diff erenti-

ate us from rivals. In this endeavour, we have focused on pasta, fast food and desserts, lines where we have 

a real edge compared with other chains, to develop hit products. 

          By working as a group to promote sales and raise the accuracy of our 

demand forecasts on an individual store basis, we are confident we have 

created a distinct public “face” for FamilyMart. There is no doubt that this is 

creating attractive  products, and increasing customer numbers.

          For example, our Three-Star Pasta has had a strong impact on sales 

trends for cooked noodles generally. Traditionally, pasta has not been 

regarded as a summer product in Japan. But by bolstering year-round sales of 

pasta products, we ended up increasing sales for the whole cooked noodle 

category in fiscal 2007 by approximately 15% year-on-year. By leveraging 

the knock-on eff ect on other ready-to-eat foods such as salads, sandwiches 

and pastries, ready-to-eat products have shown full-year growth of 1% year 

on year (on an existing store basis), despite fierce competition within the 

convenience store sector in this category.

think about what they can do to reinforce the characteristics and strengths of FamilyMart, and then act 

on those ideas. This policy enabled us to overcome an environment in which some employees felt they 

were being put upon and ordered around, without guidance or feedback, and provided opportunities for 

increasing their sense of fulfilment and achievement. I particularly urged managers not to get in the way 

or stand on the sidelines, but to pitch in. We off er full support. This Companywide initiative covers not 

only headquarters employees and franchisees, but also business partners and overseas operations such as 

those in Taiwan.

 This campaign has become the driving force of FamilyMart’s business.

Reaping the Benefi ts of Steady Eff ort (3)

Building Product Dominance
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To Our Stakeholders

To create a stronger business foundation for the chain, we have made aggressive investments to help 

franchisees with such things as the installation of store equipment and sales promotion. These include 

approximately ¥31 billion for system infrastructure—overhauls of point-of-sale and Famiport Multimedia 

Terminal equipment, and introduction of optical fi ber networks for future service businesses. We have also 

expanded the number of stores across Japan where it is possible to use e-money, stealing a march on our 

rivals in the sector. In this initiative, aimed at increasing customer convenience, we have formed alliances 

with operators of e-money systems that are already very widespread. Now the iD, Edy and Suica e-money 

systems can be used at FamilyMart stores, and all three are seeing usage rates climb month by month. 

We believe that this early commitment to e-money, compared with rival chains, will help increase 

customer visits.

 At the same time, we developed the Famima Card as part of our strategy to consolidate our cus-

tomer base. In November 2007, we joined the T-POINT program* and launched the Famima T Card. We are 

already seeing the benefi ts in terms of greater custom, with increased customer awareness and increases 

in usage rates and cardholders. 

* This program is undertaken in partnership with core entity Culture Convenience Club Co., Ltd., which operates TSUTAYA video/music 
rental stores. For more information, please see page 62.

Reaping the Benefi ts of Steady Eff ort (4) 

Infrastructure for the Future

  Number of Famima T Card Holders
       (including Famima Card holders and holders of cards without credit functions)
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FamilyMart’s Edge

Confi dence in Growth Prospects

  Year-on-year Change in Number of Customers on an Existing Store Basis (non-consolidated)

To the Next Growth Stage
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In the six years since I was appointed president, I believe the tide really has turned in our favor as we 

address the problems that remain, both great and small. In particular, fiscal 2007, when the fruits of our 

eff orts over the years set in motion a virtuous circle, was a time in which the growth in customer numbers, 

and in average daily sales per store (existing store basis) became apparent in our numerical data. As a 

result of steady progress in fixing what obviously needed to be fixed, I am confident that we have at last 

created firm foundations for our business, and that we can continue to grow in the future. 

 I believe that FamilyMart has now gained two major advantages over its rivals. The first is the 

combined strength of franchisees and headquarters. Future growth will depend not only on headquarters 

drawing up and implementing strategies, but also on franchisees themselves fully understanding these 

strategies and putting them into practice: this is the key point.

 Through our campaign to promote the “FamilyMart feel” we are further deepening the sense of 

unity between franchise stores and headquarters, and making our business stronger, store by store. These 

bonds cannot be created overnight, but I believe this unity will be one of our greatest strengths as we 

pursue future growth. 

 Secondly, regarding future prospects, we have already established a network of hubs for service 

businesses, typifi ed by the Famiport Multimedia Terminals. I believe the main battleground for competition 
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To Our Stakeholders

We recognize that many issues remain to be addressed. Competition over store-openings is no longer the 

most critical issue. The most serious problem facing the industry is a lack of franchisees. I believe that the 

decline in the number of stores will weaken their brand value and the network as a whole. I see this as a 

business opportunity for FamilyMart. By keeping store openings consistently ahead of closures under our 

scrap-and-build policy, we ensure a net increase in stores. Specifi cally, we have prepared packages aimed 

at helping franchisees realize their business expansion ambitions through measures such as the multiple-

store promotion system and franchise contract “step-up” systems, to encourage store managers with real 

commitment to join us. We have also been early to roll out corporate franchise contracts. In future, by 

making further improvements to the terms of our franchise contracts, we hope to respond to change in 

our market, positioning us as a chain that can attract franchisees with the prospect of higher earnings.

 Also raised as an issue last fiscal year was average daily sales per store of new stores. We have 

succeeded in boosting sales by ¥19,000 per day (year-on-year basis) to ¥425,000, but we are going to 

aim still higher. In fi scal 2008, through the Metropolitan-Area Development Department under the Store 

Development Division, we will strengthen our information-gathering mechanism for premises in the 

Tokyo area, and encourage large corporations to take on franchise contracts. 

 I believe that building up franchise numbers through soft membership terms and lower store-

opening standards will only increase the number of low-quality stores, and drag down the overall chain. By 

supporting managers with real commitment, from the development stage to store-opening in locations 

with high earnings potential, FamilyMart is constructing a store network that generates excellent earnings.

Issues to Be Addressed

Measures to Maintain a Profitable Network

in the future will shift to service businesses. FamilyMart has already completed the groundwork for this, 

and I believe we now have a major advantage over rival chains.
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The convenience store sector in Japan has embarked on the next stage of its growth. We believe we will 

see dramatic changes in the competitive environment within the next five years. This will result from an 

inevitable screening out of weaker players rather than any realignment at the top of the industry. The vic-

tors will then enjoy a next phase of growth. To ensure that FamilyMart is one of them, we plan to draw on 

the strengths we have built up to realize average daily sales per store of ¥500,000 and a gross profi t ratio 

of 30% within the next few years. 

 Hence we regard fi scal 2008 as the critical year for cementing our position as one of the leaders 

in our sector. We aim to thrive in fierce competition by ensuring a sustained, rigorous commitment to 

getting the basics of retailing right. Furthermore, in recent years, as the traditional concept of the family 

is eroded by demographic and social change, convenience stores are increasingly expected to share the 

burden of providing infrastructure for daily living. In fi scal 

2008, we aim to make convenience stores into mecha-

nisms for supporting family life in all its forms, lending a 

helping hand to women who work, baby-boomers and 

senior citizens. This will position us for profit growth in 

fiscal 2008 and beyond, assuring sustained and stable 

growth in years ahead.

*  For more information, please see page 56~65, “Initiatives for Further 

Growth”

Medium-Term Vision and Plans for Fiscal 2008

Consolidating our Position in the Sector 
and Preparing for the Next Stage

We intend to further consolidate our business footing in Japan and develop our next growth strategy, the 

Pan-Pacifi c Plan. This plan envisages a network of 8,000 stores in Japan and 12,000 stores overseas for a 

global total of 20,000 stores. 

 Although our China plans are pivotal to the Pan-Pacifi c Plan, and our China business is outperform-

ing profi t targets, we are developing the optimal business model for that country cautiously. Once we 

have identified the ideal format, the potential in the major cities alone means that several thousand 

stores can be opened. Our past experience suggests that, when a franchise business is launched in a new 

The Next Growth Strategy

Building a Network of 20,000 Stores Around the World

  Medium-term Goals and Basic Strategy for Fiscal 2008

Medium-term goals

Daily sales of ¥500,000, gross profi t ratio of 30%

“Where You Are One of the Family”
A helping hand for the family

Basic strategy for fiscal 2008

A year that will position us as a sector leader
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To Our Stakeholders

  FamilyMart Stores in Japan and Overseas
     (including area franchise stores)

territory, some 200 stores need to be up and running for the venture to turn a profi t. In that light, we are 

still at the preliminary investment stage in both the China and the United States markets.

 Two overseas markets  that have moved beyond that stage, and are contributing steadily to the 

bottom line, are Taiwan and South Korea. The Taiwan market is reaching maturity, but we have managed 

to increase profi ts through rigorous attention to service, quality and cleanliness, as well as adaptation of 

our “FamilyMart feel” campaign to the Taiwan market, following similar success in Japan. In December 

2007, we completed the acquisition of business rights for some 160 stores of Nikomart, and expect further 

positive benefits from this move in years ahead. 

 In the overseas markets in which we have set up operations, we expect South Korea to show 

particularly vigorous further growth. We are consolidating our leadership position in that market, where 

our results have been very strong. 

 At the same time, in Thailand, we have been steadily overhauling operations at Siam FamilyMart 

Co., Ltd., with progress more or less as planned. 

 In fiscal 2008, which we have earmarked as a year for solving various problems in the different 

overseas markets we operate in, we have finally begun the expansion of our global network while consoli-

dating our revenue base in Japan. As a result, in the year ending February 2009, we plan to increase the 

number of overseas stores by 640 to 7,328, bringing the total of stores in Japan and overseas to 14,740.

       08/2        09/2*
      (Est.) Increase of

Japan 7,187 7,412 225

Taiwan 2,247 2,359 112

South Korea 3,787 4,187 400

Thailand 507 571 64

China 136 198 62

United States 11 13 2

Total
(overseas) 6,688 7,328 640

Total 13,875 14,740 865

  Growth in Stores in Fiscal 2007 and Beyond

Expansion based on tried and 
tested business model

08/2

Net increase in stores  
under scrap-and-build 
policy

Japan

Japan+
Overseas

Number of stores

*The fi gures for 09/2 do not include the TOMONY stores.
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We aim to maximize our enterprise value by consolidating our business footing, positioning ourselves for 

sustainable growth, and paying rigorous attention to the basics — resolving the obvious issues through 

the obvious solutions.

 Another issue will be the increased pressure faced by all convenience stores to meet societal obliga-

tions in areas such as food safety and combating global warming and other environmental problems. 

Our goal is to become a company which is supported by all of its stakeholders, and which meets all its 

societal responsibilities, through an exemplary corporate commitment to better quality management 

systems, reduction of carbon dioxide emissions, and recycling of food products. I would like to thank our 

stakeholders for their continued support for our endeavours.

President and Chief Executive Offi  cer

To Our Stakeholders

FamilyMart regards the distribution of profits to shareholders as a matter of 

highest priority. Our basic policy is one of making stable dividend payments, 

taking earnings performance into due consideration. Up to now, we have used 

the payout ratio on a non-consolidated basis as the benchmark, but with the 

increased profi t contribution of overseas subsidiaries in particular, we foresaw 

further imbalance in the consolidated-to-parent ratio and in fiscal 2007 adopted 

the payout ratio on a consolidated basis as the benchmark. We have increased 

the target ratio from 30% to 35%. We plan to rethink our dividend payments on 

the basis of the new benchmark. 

      For fi scal 2007, the Company has decided to pay a dividend of ¥60 per 

share, up ¥14 over the previous term, for the third consecutive year of increase. 

We plan to raise the annual dividend for fiscal 2008 by ¥4 per share to ¥64. 

Regarding appropriation of retained earnings, we will adopt a positive stance on distribution of profits to 

shareholders, and will retain suffi  cient earnings to fi nance investment to promote overseas store-openings 

and business alliances, as well as to ensure an adequate level of reserves. Stock buybacks (acquisition of 

own shares) will be carried out when necessary to ensure prompt implementation of capital policy.

Distribution of Profi ts to Shareholders and Capital Policies 

A Clear Stance on Distribution of Profi ts to Shareholders

Raising Enterprise Value

Aiming for Sustainable Growth

(¥)

(Est.)

34.6%

29.0%29.4% 29.5%
26.8%

38 38

46
43

64
60

04/2 05/2 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2
Dividend Payout ratio
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20

30

40

50

60

70

  Cash Dividends per Share 
and Payout Ratio
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Keeping “Famimaship” close to my 

heart, I undertake corporate man-

agement with great enthusiasm. 

I want FamilyMart to be a place 

where individual staff members, 

through their work, can realize 

their dreams, and our entire chain 

of stores is full of vitality.

I deal with a wide range of legal 

issues. In devising solutions, I do 

my best to take into account 

the needs of both FamilyMart 

and our customers.

I deliver temperature-controlled 

fresh produce. I put safety and 

product integrity first, while 

aiming to satisfy both the 

stores and our customers.

I  a lways  greet  customers 

warmly when they enter the 

store, because I want them to 

feel relaxed and “at home.”

President and 
Chief Executive Officer

Legal aff airs Product deliveries Store staff 

18

20

21

21

22

Environmental Protection Activities

Contributions to Society

Food Security and Safety

Together with Franchisees and Employees

Corporate Governance 
and Internal Control System

Aiming for Sustainable Growth

Our measures to strengthen the “FamilyMart Feel”
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  Environmental Management System

In March 1999 FamilyMart received ISO 14001 certifi cation 

for its environmental management system. Since that 

time, the Company has been applying and constantly 

improving its environmental management system by 

utilizing the PDCA (Plan, Do, Check, Act) Cycle. This cycle 

is operated by an organization headed by the president of 

the Company and including staff  at our head offi  ce as well 

as local offi  ces and all our stores.

Environmental Protection Activities

President

Environmental Auditing Team

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Environmental System Supervising OfficerEnvironmental Preservation Subcommittee

Ecological Assistant Leaders Panel All Divisions, Departments, and Offices

Districts

Administrating Group

Development Sections Marketing Offices

Directly-operated Stores Franchised Stores

Head Office

Local Offices

Stores

(As of June 1, 2008)

Environmental Management System Operating Organization

  Environmental Policy

In line with the FamilyMart Environmental Policy, we have 

a rolling program of global environmental protection 

activities.

FamilyMart Environmental Policy (overview)

1. Caring for the environment through 
     our business activities

• Providing safe, worry-free products and services 

  that are environment-friendly 

• Environment-friendly product delivery

• Environment-friendly store facilities

• Store operating and waste management policies 

  that respect the local and wider community

• Environment-friendly offi  ces and Company vehicles

2. Respecting environmental laws and regulations 

3. Organizations and awareness-raising

4. Publicizing our Environmental Policy

  Environment-conscious Corporate Activities

On the basis of the ISO 14001 environmental manage-

ment systems certifi cation that FamilyMart has obtained, 

new goals are set each year for all products, services 

and infrastructure and activities of the Company and its 

group, the management of the stores, and our offi  ces and 

vehicles. Regular monitoring is conducted to ensure that 

the appropriate steps have been taken and that a process 

of continuous improvement is underway.

Category Principal Measures Implemented

Products and

Services

 Redesigning products in the “We Love 
Green” environmentally-conscious private 
brand

P r o m o t i n g  e n v i r o n m e n t - f r i e n d l y 
packaging materials (plastic from biomass) 
and paper packaging

Delivery

Replacing our delivery vehicles with 
new models featuring lower harmful gas 
emissions

 Improving the fuel consumption effi  ciency 
of all vehicles used by our delivery centers 
by ensuring that they are driven at 
optimally fuel-effi  cient speeds 

Store

Infrastructure

As an energy-saving measure in our stores, 
introduction of integrated co-generation 
for air-conditioning, refrigerators and 
freezers, and of energy-saving equipment 
(for example, dessert display cases)

Replacing existing store-façade signs with 
a new type using white LEDs

Store

Management

Reducing the volume of waste generated 
by stores, and raising the proportion of 
waste recycled, through the use of a waste 
edible oil recycling system, a solid organic 
waste recycling system, and waste disposal 
units for each store 

 Taking steps to reduce the number of 
plastic bags provided to customers

Offi  ces and 
Vehicles

 Reducing electric power consumption and 
the amount of copying paper used

Ensuring that a large number of paper 
recycling boxes are placed in highly visible 
locations

 Gradually replacing existing fleet of 
company vehicles with low-pollution 
vehicles; ensuring that vehicles are driven 
at optimally fuel-effi  cient speeds
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Aiming for Sustainable Growth

Environmental Measures
Convenience is the key to making our customers feel comfortable at FamilyMart stores. 

However, improving convenience necessarily entails environmental impact. In reducing such 

impact while offering the convenience that our customers expect, we take an incremental 

approach, doing what we can day by day. Below are outlines of some of our measures.

Environment-friendly Packaging

Made mainly from corn, biomass plastic emits less CO2 

than plastics derived from petrochemicals, and at the 

same time conserves petrochemical resources. In June 

2007 FamilyMart launched the use of biomass plastic 

in two kinds of salad container, and in November ex-

panded its use to egg packaging. Biomass-based plastic 

helps us work with the customer in reducing the global-

warming eff ect from everyday products.

Environment-Friendly Product Delivery

Another measure to reduce environmental impact is the 

use of low-pollution vehicles for goods delivery to our 

stores. By the end of fiscal 2007, we had introduced 218 

hybrid vehicles equipped with electric motors and diesel 

engines for this job. Year by year we have reduced the 

number of vehicles used as we develop ways of making de-

liveries at multiple temperature ranges, cutting down the 

number of trips needed. In fi scal 1990, a single FamilyMart 

store needed 22 delivery vehicle visits a day; in fi scal 2007, 

we had brought that figure down to eight. In addition, 

we ensure that our 

drivers run at opti-

mally fuel-efficient 

speeds when mak-

ing deliveries.

Recycling of Waste Materials

To make better use of waste food, we began phasing in 

our solid organic waste recycling system in 1999. In fi s-

cal 2008, we plan to introduce recycling of waste into 

liquid animal feed at some of our Tokyo stores. 

 We also recycle frying oil, which can be used as a 

raw material for animal feed, 

soap and detergents. In fiscal 

2007, in a new init iat ive, we 

added medicated hand soap 

made par tly of waste edible 

oil materials to the list of items 

regularly supplied to stores.

Trial Introduction of LED Signs

Light-emitting diodes (LEDs) save electricity and are long-

lasting. Compared with fluorescent lamps, they consume 

less electric power and need to be replaced less often, 

making them eff ective aids in combating global warming. 

New LED façade signage experimentally introduced in fi scal 

2004 has achieved signifi cant cuts, of some 30% to 50%, in 

power consumption compared with signs using conven-

tional f luorescent 

lighting. We plan to 

continue trialing LED 

lighting, introducing 

the technology at 

new stores. 
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Contributions to Society

  Social Contribution Policy

Based on the FamilyMart Social Contribution Policy, the 

Company is involved in a range of activities aimed at bring-

ing about a better society.

  Collection of Donations at Our Counters

Through the FamilyMart Connecting Dreams Foundation, 

we collect charitable donations at our counters. We act 

as a channel for customer donations which go to NPOs 

and NGOs involved in initiatives to help children and 

create a better future for Japan and the world. Donations 

are distributed equally among four organizations: 

Japan Association for the United Nations World Food 

Program, Save the Children Japan, the National Land 

Afforestation Promotion Organization, 

and Environmental Restoration and 

Conservation Agency of Japan.

  Emergency Relief Donations

We also have a system in place that 

enables the Company's management, 

in the event of a large-scale natural disaster, to e-mail all 

stores and order the immediate launch of collection of 

donations of money to be used for relief. In fi scal 2007, this 

emergency donation collection system went into action 

on two occasions, at the time of the Noto Peninsula and 

Niigata-Chuetsu earthquakes. Thanks to the generous sup-

port of our customers, we were able to send a signifi cant 

sum of money to the aff ected areas.

*Bellmark: Participating 

companies  contr ibute 

for classroom equipment 

purchases based on points 

on Bellmark product labels 

(collected by PTAs).

FamilyMart Social Contribution Policy

Through this Policy, FamilyMart works for balanced development 

at the international and regional levels, and for greater spiritual 

affl  uence in society.

1. As a company with international operations, we actively 

seek to help enrich the global community and support 

environmental protection.

2. To meet the expectations of local communities and win 

their trust, we take care to build links and prosper in 

harmony with them.

3. As part of our role in helping create safe, secure neighbor-

hoods, we take various measures to help local parents 

keep their children out of trouble.

4. We support the individual eff orts of our employees to get 

involved in social contribution activities.

  A Lifeline in Disasters and Emergencies

As FamilyMart stores are located at neighborhood hubs, 

and as the majority of them are open for business around 

the clock, every day of the year, they naturally become part 

of local lifeline services in the event of a major earthquake 

or other disaster, ensuring steady supplies of daily neces-

sities. They can also serve as support and liaison points for 

people unable to return home. In fiscal 2007 we signed 

agreements on this matter with six prefectures, Ehime, 

Ishikawa, Nagasaki, Akita, Osaka and Fukuoka. At the end 

of February 2008, we had signed agreements on merchan-

dise supplies with 13 prefectures, and, with regard to relief 

measures for disaster victims unable to return home, agree-

ments with nine prefectures and other local governments.

Participation in the Bellmark Campaign

FamilyMart has become the first company in the retail 

sector to join the Bellmark campaign*, operated by the 

Bellmark Foundation. Since April 2008, all of our rice-

ball products have carried the Bellmark logo on their 

packaging. This program will help bring us still closer 

to the community through our store operations, enabling 

us to serve as a bridge between customers and neigh-

borhood communities.

Helping Developing Countries: 
The ¥20-Meal Movement

FamilyMart Shonan training center for regular employees 

and franchisees participates in the TABLE FOR TWO initia-

tive. In this project, ¥20 is set aside each time a participant 

in a developed country eats a healthy meal, and then used 

to subsidize a meal eaten in a developing country. The do-

nations, remitted by the TABLE FOR TWO secretariat, are 

used for school meals in developing countries. 
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  Comprehensive Quality Control System

To ensure supplies of fresh, safe and worry-free products to 

our customers at all times, FamilyMart subjects ingredients 

in ready-to-eat meals* to strict quality control standards 

in all processes from procurement through production, 

delivery and sale. At every stage, specialist external agen-

cies carry out bacterial and laboratory inspections. We 

deliver to our customers products that meet not only legal 

standards but also our own still more rigorous quality 

control criteria.

  Doing More to Ensure 

      that Our Products are Safe and Worry-Free

Through its day-to-day food safety management meetings, 

FamilyMart encourages the representatives (presidents) 

of all our business partners that supply us with ready-to-

eat meals to show greater commitment to food safety and 

security. To ensure the most rigorous quality control, we 

encourage all suppliers of ready-to-eat products to acquire 

ISO 9001 certification, and retain experts qualified in ISO 

9001 inspection at our Head Offi  ce Quality Control Depart-

ment to offer guidance at all plants. By the end of fiscal 

2008, we target 100% acquisition of ISO 9001 at all suppli-

ers of ready-to-eat products as we go about further raising 

quality control levels.

Food Security and Safety

Head Office
Procurement according to 
  strict selection criteria
Inspections
Food additive reduction 
Keeping customers informed

Quality and hygiene control 
  for ingredients
Hygiene management: 
  Personnel
Hygiene management:
  Food-processing

Factories

•
•••

Hygiene management
Temperature management
Shelf-life management

In stores•••

•
•
•

Temperature management
Three deliveries-per-day 
  system

Distribution••

Quality Control System

Together with Franchisees 
and Employees

*Ready-to-eat meals: Fast food, rice balls, sushi, boxed lunches, cooked noo-
dles, delicatessen items, salads, savory and sweet rolls and pastries, desserts 
and other food products.

  Partnership with Franchisees 

The franchise owners and the FamilyMart head offi  ce func-

tion as separate business entities (partners). They pursue 

growth goals in partnership. 

 At briefi ngs held at the beginning of each fi scal year, 

upcoming business policies are explained to all franchisees. 

At the “Famimaship Forum,” held twice a year, new product 

briefi ngs are given for everybody, with showcasing of ideas 

for creating retail spaces with the “FamilyMart feel.” We also 

run the Store Staff Total (SST) system (please see page 57) 

for training and skills development for store staff, who are 

the key to successful store management, and supervisor 

support systems. These are examples of our support for 

stable management and sales expansion at franchise stores.

  Staff  Training and Skills Development Programs

In fi scal 2007, we launched the Famima Academy for foster-

ing key management staff and employees with specialist 

skills. In this initiative, 80% of the training costs of those 

completing official correspondence courses incorporated 

into our career development support system are subsidized 

by the Company. By creating new opportunities for train-

ing through seminars and correspondence courses, we aim 

to help our employees to think and act more eff ectively on 

their own initiative.

Aiming for Sustainable Growth

Autonomous staff training
Training for new hires 

(General Affairs and
Personnel Department)

In-store training, and
store manager training

Supervisor training
(Operation Division)

2. Fostering Employees
     with Specialist Skills

1. Fostering Key
     Management Staff

3. Basic Knowledge and Practical Skills Acquisition

Training for middle management 
Fostering specialist skills

Overseas training
Correspondence courses

Seminar for fostering
management candidates

Selection of leaders Support for
raising self-awareness

Mid-career training

Joining the
Company

Promotion

Appointments

Famima Academy
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  Our Basic Stance on Corporate Governance

Based on our belief that strong corporate governance 

builds enterprise value, we are working to establish a 

transparent and effective management system. To this 

end, we are working to establish a system to ensure legal 

compliance and the accurate performance of clerical work. 

In addition, to ensure proper corporate governance, it is 

essential to fulfi ll our duty of accountability through regu-

lar and suffi  cient disclosure of corporate information.

  Our Corporate Governance System

As of June 1, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors com-

prises 11 directors. Regular meetings of the Board are held 

once every month to decide on important matters aff ect-

ing the Company’s business operations, and to perform 

supervisory duties. FamilyMart has adopted the executive 

officer system, with transfer of substantial executive au-

thority to executive offi  cers, as part of eff orts to speed up 

the taking and execution of decisions aff ecting operations. 

We have also set up a Risk Management & Compliance 

Committee to coordinate risk management systems and 

strengthen our mechanisms for observance of all laws and 

ethical norms, and an Internal Control Department to es-

tablish an internal control system and entrench corporate 

governance at FamilyMart.

 As an internal auditing unit,  the Company ’s 

organization includes the Audit Office, which reports di-

rectly to the President of the Company. Taking a Compa-

nywide perspective, Audit Office staff examine business 

operations in terms of effi  ciency of performance, risk man-

agement and compliance. They also conduct thorough 

checks on progress in implementation of Audit Office 

directives and proposals, exchange information and liaise 

with internal audit staff  of other Group companies.

 The Company’s Board of Corporate Auditors consists 

of four members, of whom two are outside corporate audi-

tors. The auditors sit in on meetings of the Board of Direc-

tors and other high-level managerial meetings, and inspect 

the state of the Company’s business operations and fi nan-

cial position after reading documents on important man-

agement decisions. They also maintain close contact with 

the Audit Offi  ce and other related units, and hold regular 

liaison meetings with corporate auditors of Group com-

panies to ensure a sound governance system throughout 

FamilyMart Group.

 FamilyMart has a contractual agreement with the 

auditing company Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to perform 

the auditing of the Company’s accounts in line with the 

Corporate Law and Financial Instruments and Exchange 

Law. The accounting auditors, as an independent organiza-

tion, examines the fi nancial statements and other fi nancial 

documents of the Company. Upon receiving accounting 

auditors’ reports, the Company exchanges opinions on the 

fi ndings with the accounting auditors.

Reporting

Audit Office

Accounting Auditors
(certified public accountants)

Risk Management &
Compliance Committee

Management Meeting

Marketing Strategy Meetings

Internal Control Department

Information Management Office

President and Chief Executive Officer

Executive Officers

Districts/Departments

Appointment/Dismissal

Audit

Collaboration

Accounting Audit

Appointment/Dismissal

(As of June 1, 2008)

Supervision

Appointment/DismissalAppointment/Dismissal

General Meetings of Shareholders

Board of Corporate Auditors Board of Directors

Corporate Governance System

Corporate Governance and Internal Control System
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Aiming for Sustainable Growth

  Remuneration of Directors, 

     Corporate Auditors and Independent Auditors

  Structure of Internal Control System

FamilyMart is taking measures to further develop internal 

controls, based on its Board-approved basic policy on the 

creation of a more effective internal control system. In 

December 2007 the Company set up the Internal Control 

Department, and expanded the role of the existing Risk 

Management & Compliance Committee to review the 

adequacy and operational status of internal controls. Un-

der the auspices of this committee, the Company created 

special working groups for crisis management, compliance 

and information management. These measures are intended 

to ensure the best possible risk management, including 

legal observance in every sphere of operations.

The Risk Management & Compliance Committee 
and Its Specialist Subcommittees

Compliance Policy

Directors 245

Corporate auditors
57

(including ¥26 million for outside corporate auditors)

Payment for audit certifi cation 45

Other payments 3

(Millions of yen)

(Millions of yen)

Amounts of remuneration, etc., to directors and corporate auditors

Amounts of remuneration to independent auditors

Notes:

1. The above amounts include an ¥88 million increase in the liability for retirement benefi ts for Directors 

and corporate auditors for the year (¥76 million for Directors, and ¥11 million for corporate auditors 

(including ¥5 million for outside corporate auditors)).

2. The above amounts do not include amounts corresponding to salaries and bonuses for Directors who 

concurrently serve as employees. 

Crisis Management

Subcommittee

Compliance 

Subcommittee

Information 

Management 

Subcommittee

Risk Management &
Compliance Committee

Advisory body to the President Secretariat

Deliberative council for the 

discussion of operations and

 improvement of the Company’s 

internal control systems

President Internal
Control

Department

  Ensuring the Adequacy of 

      Internal Control Systems

The Internal Control Department undertakes the following 

measures in its capacity as Companywide coordinator for 

compliance , internal controls relating to fi nancial report-

ing, and risk and information management.

Compliance

The Company has established the FamilyMart Ethics and 

Compliance Basic Guidelines, the Three-Point Compliance 

Action Guidelines, and the Compliance Code of Conduct. 

These documents spell out the Company’s compliance 

policy in specific terms. The introduction of an internal 

reporting system, through which ethical failures and legal 

violations may be fl agged up, has enabled us to strengthen 

our ethical and legal observance.

Internal Controls Relating to Financial Reporting

We have established in-house regulations and reviewed 

our internal controls to improve the quality of our fi nancial 

reporting (securities reports, etc). We are taking systematic 

measures to eliminate the risk of false data being recorded 

as signifi cant information in our fi nancial statements.

1. Sound business management

2. Ensuring safe and

       reliable products and services

3. Fair trading

4. Appropriate information management

5. Environmental awareness

6. Creating an ideal workplace

      environment

7. Rejection of association

        with criminal elements

Three-Point Compliance

Action Guidelines

Basic Action Guidelines

for All Employees

Specific Rules of

Conduct (“dos and don’ts”)

Compliance Code of

Conduct

FamilyMart Ethics and
Compliance Basic Guidelines
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The FTSE4Good

In September 2003 FamilyMart Co., Ltd. became a constituent of the FTSE4Good Index Series. This 

is an equity index series created by the global index company FTSE Group, and is designed to facili-

tate investment in companies that meet globally recognized corporate responsibility standards with 

respect to social, ethical, and environmental criteria. The index is targeted at investors who have a 

strong interest in supporting companies that contribute to the realization of a sustainable society.

Risk Management

To ensure due risk management on a Companywide 

basis, each unit of FamilyMart has compiled a “risk map” with 

review and categorization — in terms of frequency of occur-

rence, likely impact and other factors — of the various risk 

factors to which they are exposed. This will raise risk aware-

ness. Based on the risk map, the Company is completing a 

set of regulations and a manual on systems and methods for 

minimizing the impact of risks considered the most serious.

Information Management

To establish a Companywide system for information man-

agement, we have compiled a Basic Policy Document for 

Information Security for management of confi dentiality of 

data and business operations. We have compiled a Personal 

Information Protection Policy and drawn up internal regula-

tory documents to appropriately safeguard personal infor-

mation relating to major customers and franchisees.

Acquisition of Privacy Mark

In November 2006, FamilyMart became the first conve-

nience store chain operator in Japan to obtain permission to 

display the Privacy Mark.* In February 2007, the same per-

mission was also extended to our e-commerce subsidiary 

famima.com Co., Ltd.

 Looking ahead, we aim to further strengthen our in-

formation management measures to win still deeper trust in 

the FamilyMart brand.

  Policy (Action against Corporate Acquisition) 

      toward Large-Scale Purchases of FamilyMart Shares

In recent years, we have seen sudden, large-scale stock 

purchases without due consultation between buyers and 

the targeted companies, which have damaged the author-

ity of the managements of these companies. To defend 

against such purchases, which could cause significant 

damage to the enterprise value of FamilyMart and the 

common interests of its shareholders, in fi scal 2006 we in-

troduced the Policy (Action against Corporate Acquisition) 

toward Large-Scale Purchases of FamilyMart Shares. This 

policy is designed to ensure that shareholders are able to 

exercise due judgment with regard to any proposed share 

purchase of this kind, after provision of relevant informa-

tion by the would-be buyers and allowance of a certain pe-

riod for review. In May 2008, we received approval for the 

extension of this policy at the Ordinary General Meeting of 

Shareholders.

  Disclosure

FamilyMart’s IR activities are principally characterized by 

accuracy, speed of disclosure, and impartiality. In Novem-

ber 2006 we received the Excellent IR Activity Award from 

the Japan Investor Relations Association. In fi scal 2007, we 

implemented a variety of IR activities under the fi rm lead-

ership of our President. These activities include analysts’ 

meetings to explain our interim and year-end business 

results, overseas IR activities, responses to individual re-

quests for interviews, updating our website, and regularly 

publishing financial reports and other materials. In re-

sponse to these eff orts, the Security Analysts Association 

of Japan has ranked FamilyMart as No. 2 of 16 companies 

in the retail industry for its superior disclosure to securi-

ties analysts for the second year in a row. We will continue 

strengthening our IR activities in the future. 

Aiming for Sustainable Growth

*Privacy Mark: Indicates approval by Japan Informa-

tion Processing Development Corporation as con-

forming with Japanese Industrial Standards JIS Q 

15001 for businesses handling personal information.
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Organization

Tohoku-Daiichi DistrictInformation Systems Planning Department

Information Systems Development Department

Information Systems Operating Department

Product Planning & Marketing Department

Information Systems Division

Merchandising Division

CSR Department

Customer Service Office

District Administration Office

Risk Management & 

Compliance Committee

Secretarial Office

Board of Directors

Chairman

President

Board of Corporate Auditors

Internal Control Department

Information Management Office

Audit Office Franchisee Relations Office

Corporate Communications and Investors Relations Department

Investors Relations Office

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Crisis Management Subcommittee

Compliance Subcommittee

Information Management Subcommittee

Corporate Planning Department Marketing Department

Corporate Management Department

Corporate Planning Division

Logistics and Quality 

Control Division

Operation Division

Store Development Division

Management Division

Area Franchising Division

Fresh Food Planning Department

Delicatessen Department

Processed Food & Beverages Department

Regional Merchandising Department

Service, Non-food and Entertainment Division

Demand Chain Management Department

Logistics Department

Quality Control Department

Store Operation Department (planning)

Store Operation Department

Company-Owned Store Business Department

Franchisee Property Administration Department

New Store Screening Department

SR Project Office

Metropolitan-Area Development Department

Corporate Store Development Department

Store Development Department

Store Construction and Facilities Department

General Affairs and Personnel Department

Legal Department

Accounting and Finance Department

Franchisee Accounting Department

Domestic Business Department

Overseas Business Department

Non-food and Service Department

Kita-Kanto District

Saitama District

Chiba District

Tokyo-Daiichi District

Tokyo-Daini District

Tokyo-Daisan District

Kanagawa District

Shonan and 

Shizuoka District

Tokai-Daiichi District

Tokai-Daini District

Hokuriku District

Kansai-Daiichi District

Kansai-Daini District

Kansai-Daisan District

Hyogo District

Chugoku District

Shikoku District

Kyushu-Daiichi District

Kyushu-Daini District

Tohoku-Daini District

(As of June 1, 2008)
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Our computer system is key to 

maintaining customer loyalty. I am 

committed to developing a sys-

tem that makes FamilyMart highly 

competitive through anticipation 

of customer needs. 

To me, the “FamilyMart Feel” 

means greeting the customers, 

delivering satisfaction. Each day, 

I aim to provide our customers 

with an even warmer and more 

friendly experience.

My job is to devise consistent 

communication strategies that 

help mobilize the enthusiasm 

of franchisees and store staff  to 

more speedily share successful 

initiatives.

In my super visor y  work ,  I 

collaborate closely with franchi-

sees to analyze and solve their 

problems, opening up bright 

prospects for their business 

expansion.

System development Store staff 
Executive Offi  cer, 

Marketing Department Supervisor
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Millions of yen

2008 2007 2006

Results of operations:

Operating revenues:

  Commission from franchised stores  .......................... 150,351 142,294 138,636

  Net sales ................................................................... 147,856 134,506 118,551

  Other operating revenues  ......................................... 21,232 21,049 19,256

  Total operating revenues  ........................................... 319,439 297,849 276,443

Operating income  ....................................................... 31,214 29,609 32,662

Net income  ................................................................. 16,438 14,969 14,195

Net cash provided by operating activities  .................... 49,375 35,093 42,778

Net cash used in investing activities  ............................ (24,593) (32,938) (32,249)

Net cash provided by (used in) fi nancing activities  ....... 3,956 (19,155) (4,238)

Financial position:

Total assets  ................................................................ 351,271 315,256 314,121

Total equity (Note 2)  .................................................... 191,281 171,155 168,233

Per share of common stock:

Total equity (in yen and U.S. dollars) (Note 2) ................... 1,921.6 1,771.3 1,736.2

Basic net income (in yen and U.S. dollars)  .................... 173.5 158.8 145.7

Cash dividends applicable to the year
  (in yen and U.S. dollars)  ............................................ 60.0 46.0 43.0

Ratio:

Equity ratio (%)  ........................................................... 52.2 51.9 53.6

Return on equity (%)  ................................................... 9.5 9.0 8.7

Return on total assets (%)  ........................................... 4.9 4.8 4.7

Other data:

Number of franchised stores and 
  Company-owned stores  ........................................... 6,691 6,501 6,284

Number of area franchised stores
  (including overseas area franchised stores) ................ 7,184 6,621 6,168

Number of stores  ........................................................ 13,875 13,122 12,452

Number of full-time employees  ................................... 6,647 6,735 6,048

Number of shareholders  ............................................. 14,933 17,880 17,444

Weighted average number of shares (thousands) ........ 94,425 94,037 96,846

Notes:  1. Conversion into U.S. dollars has been made at the exchange rate of ¥105=U.S.$1, the rate prevailing on February 29, 2008.

2. Beginning with the fi scal year ended February 28, 2007, minority interests have been included in total equity.

Consolidated Eight-Year Summary
FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries       Years Ended the Last Day of February
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Millions of yen
Thousands of 

U.S. dollars (Note 1)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2008

132,864 127,164 122,738 116,478  111,729 1,431,914

103,599 87,083 80,952 67,822 54,122 1,408,152

16,438 14,730 13,778 11,305 10,248 202,210

252,901 228,977 217,468 195,605 176,099 3,042,276

30,869 29,093 27,921 23,756 24,123 297,276

12,623 13,788 12,880 8,549 8,112 156,552

1,428 73,593 32,694 34,219 23,305 470,238

(23,183) (10,719) (29,327) (28,812) (30,980) (234,219)

(3,922) (3,892) (3,626) (4,338) (6,160) 37,676

286,771 309,315 250,609 242,517 230,883 3,345,438

156,931 147,524 137,636 130,510 126,190 1,821,724

1,619.5 1,522.3 1,420.4 1,346.6 1,302.2 18.30

129.5 141.5 132.3 87.6 82.8 1.65

38.0 38.0 38.0 38.0 38.0 0.57

54.7 47.7 54.9 53.8 54.6

8.3 9.7 9.6 6.7 6.5

4.2 4.9 5.2 3.7 3.7

5,994 5,770 5,593 5,287 5,275

5,507 4,556 3,530 2,897 2,341

11,501 10,326 9,123 8,184 7,616

5,458 4,675 4,466 4,205 3,917

18,644 21,173 24,263 28,088 31,429

96,852 96,857 96,867 96,868 97,107
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Business Environment

During the reporting term ended February 2008, the Japanese 

economy showed further signs of recovery, as indicated by 

improved corporate profits and increased private sector-

capital investment. By the term-end, however, the economy 

was experiencing an overall deceleration triggered by soaring 

oil and raw materials prices, and a full-scale recovery in 

personal consumption also failed to materialize. The operating 

environment for convenience stores remained challenging, 

characterized by greater variation in consumer demand 

trends, a changing population structure, advances in IT, and 

intensifi ed competition from players outside the industry.

Business Performance (non-consolidated)

At a time when the majority of competitors were reporting 

year-on-year declines in daily sales on an existing store basis, 

the growth rate of FamilyMart’s daily sales on an existing store 

basis came to 0.9%, marking a return to positive growth for 

the first time in three years. In recent years, the industry has 

seen a downward trend in daily sales on an existing store basis. 

At FamilyMart, we responded to this trend by getting back to 

the basics of retailing and enhancing our unique strengths – 

what we call the “FamilyMart Feel” – so as to create a stronger 

business foundation leading to healthy earnings in the future. In 

this way, we have worked to win customer loyalty, as evidenced 

by the continuous rising trend since December 2006 in the 

number of customers per store on an existing store basis (ex-

cluding June 2007, when a decline in cigarette sales was seen, 

in reaction to a one-time surge in anticipation of a tax hike).

Breakdown of Sales by Product Category (non-consolidated)

A breakdown of sales shows an across-the-board rise in all 

categories.

 In fast food categories, sales rose 7.2% as a result of our 

positioning this category as one of the priority categories. An 

especially strong performance was recorded in fried chicken, 

“Fami-chiki” boneless fried chicken, and oden (Japanese-style 

stewed hodgepodge). 

 In the daily food category, not only did our ready-to-

eat “Three-Star Pasta” and other prepared noodle dishes post 

a strong growth in sales, but rice balls, bread and pastries, 

chilled beverages, and desserts also showed a substantial 

year-on-year increase in sales. To respond to the preferences 

of individual local markets, we have expanded the number 

of Famima Fresh corners, where we sell fresh vegetables 

and prepared food kits, to approximately 1,000 of our stores 

primarily in the three major metropolises of Tokyo, Osaka, 

and Nagoya. This, in turn, has led to a rise in sales of fresh 

produce and related items. Amid increasingly severe, industry-

wide competition in boxed lunches, we were able to enhance 

the attractiveness of our offerings, which contributed to a 

turnaround in sales for these items. As a result, sales of daily 

food category rose 5.8% year-on-year.

 In processed foods, sales rose 4.7% year-on-year, thanks 

to a strong performance by beverages, liquor, confectionery, 

and ice cream.

 In the non-food category, selected items among our 

product lineup faced intensified competition from discount 

stores and other competitors from outside the industry. This 

decline was off set by an increase in sales of cigarettes, which 

led to a year-on-year rise of 4.5% in sales in this category. We 

expect this upward trend to continue in the current fi scal year, 

given that from July 2008 consumers will be required to use 

taspo IC cards for age verifi cation when purchasing cigarettes 

from vending machines.

 In services, revenue increased 1.7% year-on-year, sup-

ported by growth in sales of stamps, post cards, and express 

delivery services.

 Sales in the e-commerce fi eld also grew, up 2.8% over the 

previous year, attributable largely to a rise in online ticket sales.

07/2 08/2
YoY 

difference

Growth rate of average daily 
  sales per existing stores (%)

(1.4) 0.9 2.3

Average daily sales (existing
  stores; thousands of yen)

466 473 7

Number of customers
  (existing stores)

834 858 24

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Performance (non-consolidated)

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the performance results of the TOMONY 
stores.
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Gross Profit Ratio (non-consolidated)

There was a rise in the contribution to sales ratio of cigarettes, 

which have a low profi t ratio. Sales also grew for ready-to-eat 

foods, which have a high profit ratio. In addition, our efforts 

to improve gross profit ratios, particularly of food products, 

resulted in a gross profi t ratio of 29.18%, up 0.23 of a percent-

age point from the previous year.

Store Development

We are continuing to open stores in new markets, such as 

expressway service areas and hospitals, with the aim of further 

enhancing customer convenience and responding to unmet 

customer needs. Adopting a new retail format, in July 2007 

we commenced joint development of the TOMONY store 

format for shopping areas inside station buildings operated 

by Seibu Railway in the Tokyo area. During the reporting term, 

we opened 515 new stores (excluding five newly opened 

TOMONY stores), and closed 330 stores (which includes 67 

stores under the scrap and build category). As of the term-

end, we had a total of 6,691 stores. This marks an increase 

of 190 stores over the previous fiscal year-end. Amid the 

implementation of more rigorous standards for new store 

openings, new store daily sales reached ¥425,000, a year-

on-year rise of ¥19,000, primarily attributable to the strategy 

of concentrating new store openings in Japan’s three major 

metropolises, where the level of daily sales is the highest.

 As of the term-end, FamilyMart had a total of 7,187 

stores operating in Japan, including stores operated under 

three domestic area franchisers. Regarding overseas expan-

sion by area franchisers, a new store began operation in 

Suzhou, in China’s Jiangsu Province, in September 2007. As a 

result, the number of stores operating in the overseas markets 

of Taiwan, South Korea, Thailand, China, and the United States 

totaled 6,688, bringing the grand total to 13,875 stores in the 

FamilyMart chain.

Year ended

February 29, 2008

Fast food 3.7%E-commerce 4.9%

Services 2.4%

Non-food 25.8%

Processed food 30.5%

Daily food

32.7%

07/2 08/2 YoY diff erence

Gross profit 
  ratio (%)

28.95 29.18 0.23

07/2 08/2
YoY 

diff erence

Store openings 586 515 (71)

Store closures 369 330 (39)

Scrap and build 53 67 14

Average daily sales per store 
  (new stores; thousands of yen)

406 425 19

07/2 08/2
YoY 

diff erence

Japan 6,974 7,187 213

Overseas 6,148 6,688 540

Total chain stores 13,122 13,875 753

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.

Breakdown of Sales by Product Category (non-consolidated)

Store Development Performance (non-consolidated)

Sales by Product Category (non-consolidated)

Gross Profi t Ratio (non-consolidated)

Number of Stores (including area franchised stores)

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.

(Millions of yen)

07/2 08/2 YoY change

Fast food 38,502 41,286 7.2%

Daily food 346,725 366,960 5.8%

Processed food 327,043 342,502 4.7%

Non-food 276,656 289,239 4.5%

Services 26,935 27,401 1.7%

E-commerce 52,961 54,450 2.8%

Total 1,068,822 1,121,838 5.0%
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Operating Results

 (Analysis of Revenues, Costs and Expenses)

The FamilyMart Group, headed by FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

(“the Company”), comprises 28 companies, consisting of 12 

subsidiaries (7 consolidated subsidiaries and 4 unconsolidated 

subsidiaries accounted for by the equity method), and 15 

affiliated companies, all of which are accounted for by the 

equity method. The Group’s main business is the operation of 

convenience stores, and it has been actively diversifying into 

the operation of e-commerce and other related services.

 On a consolidated basis, total operating revenues, 

consisting of commissions from franchised stores, sales at 

directly-operated stores and other operating revenues, grew 

by ¥21,590 million, or 7.2%, to ¥319,439 million (US$3,042 mil-

lion). Of this total, operating revenues from convenience store 

operations rose ¥19,251 million, or 8.0%, to ¥260,576 million, 

owing to increases in commissions from franchise stores and 

sales at Company-owned stores. Operating revenues from the 

e-commerce business rose ¥2,055 million, or 3.7%, to ¥57,770 

million, thanks to growth in revenues from the Famiport 

Multimedia Terminals, among others. 

 Total operating expenses increased ¥19,985 million, or 

7.5%, to ¥288,225 million (US$2,745 million). This is attribut-

able to an increase in the expenses for the convenience store 

business, which more than cancelled out a decrease in SG&A 

expenses for the e-commerce business owing to initiatives to 

improve the earnings structure including the introduction of 

new Famiport Multimedia Terminals. In the convenience store 

business, SG&A expenses rose, primarily due to expenditures 

for a store-management system for new stores, in addition to 

a rise in rents accompanying growth in the number of stores.  

 As a result, operating income rose ¥1,605 million, or 

5.4%, to ¥31,214 million (US$297 million) year on year. Of this 

total, operating income from convenience store operations 

increased ¥1,340 million, or 4.0%, to ¥35,040 million, while 

operating income from e-commerce grew ¥599 million, or 

124.1%, to ¥1,081 million.

 A net fi gure for “other expenses” of ¥2,382 million (US$23 

million) was registered for the reporting period, a year-on-year 

decrease of ¥477 million, or 16.7%. This was despite increases 

in interest received and gains on equity-method investments.

 Consequently, income before income taxes and minority 

interests came to ¥28,832 million (US$275 million), up ¥2,082 

million, or 7.8%, from the previous business term. Net income 

rose ¥1,469 million, or 9.8%, to ¥16,438 million (US$157 million). 

 Earnings per share amounted to ¥173.5 (US$1.65).

 Financial Position

Total assets at the reporting term-end amounted to ¥351,271 

million (US$3,345 million), an increase of ¥36,015 million, or 

11.4%, over the previous term-end. 

 Current assets came to ¥159,575 million (US$1,520 mil-

lion), up ¥28,646 million from the previous term-end. This was 
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due largely to an increase in retained earnings, as well as a rise 

in cash and cash equivalents and marketable and investment 

securities accompanying the sale of own shares. 

 The book value of property and store facilities fell 

¥2,563 million to ¥52,695 million (US$502 million). This decline 

is mainly attributable to the disposal of properties primarily 

due to store closure and renovation. 

 Investments and other assets rose ¥9,932 million, to 

¥139,001 million (US$1,324 million), principally owing to the 

increase in store-related leasehold deposits.

 Total liabilities increased ¥15,889 million (11.0%) to 

¥159,990 million (US$1,524 million).

 Current liabilities grew ¥15,566 million to ¥141,929 

million (US$1,352 million), due primarily to growth in trade 

payables and a rise in utility payments received from 

customers. 

 Long-term liabilities rose by ¥323 million to ¥18,061 

million (US$172 million). This is attributable primarily to the 

posting of higher losses on long-term lease assets under 

impairment accounting.

 As a result, total equity came to ¥191,281 million 

(US$1,822 million), while the equity ratio rose slightly, from 

51.9% to 52.2%. Total equity per share amounted to ¥1,921.6.

Cash Flows

The term-end balance of cash and cash equivalents stood at 

¥98,844 million (US$941 million), up ¥29,293 million, or 42.1% 

year-on-year. 

 Net cash provided by operating activities came to 

¥49,375 million (US$470 million), up ¥14,282 million. This is 

mainly attributable to a ¥2,082 million increase in income 

before income taxes, a ¥3,850 million rise in trade payables, 

and a ¥2,508 million increase in deposits received, as well as a 

¥1,874 million decrease in income tax payments.

 Net cash used in investing activities reached ¥24,593 

million (US$234 million), down ¥8,345 million. This is primarily 

due to a ¥19,083 million decrease in purchases of marketable 

and investment securities, and a ¥6,646 million decrease in 

purchases of property and store facilities, software and other 

intangible assets. This more than offset a ¥15,725 million 

decline in proceeds from sales and redemption at maturity of 

marketable and investment securities.

 Net cash provided by fi nancing activities came to ¥3,956 

million (US$38 million), compared with an outfl ow of ¥19,155 

million for the previous period, mainly owing to a ¥16,447 

million decline in expenditures for the purchase of own shares, 

and a ¥6,976 million increase in proceeds from the sale of 

shares in treasury.

Dividend Policy

The Company regards the distribution of profi ts to sharehold-

ers, in the form of the payment of dividends, as a matter 

of highest priority. In accordance with the Company’s 

fundamental policy of implementing a stable distribution of 

dividends to shareholders in line with the growth of opera-

tions, the management has decided to pay an annual per-

share dividend (including an interim dividend) of ¥60 (US$0.57) 

for the reporting term, up ¥14 over the previous period.

 For the current term, ending February 2009, the 

Company plans to increase its annual per-share dividend to 

¥64 (US$0.61). 

Outlook 

In the current term, the deceleration of the U.S. economy and 

the surge in the price of oil and raw materials is expected to 

have a dampening eff ect on Japan’s economic growth. With a 

full-scale recovery in consumer spending unlikely, we expect 

our operating environment to become increasingly harsh. 

 Against this backdrop, FamilyMart will help all of its 

franchisees to achieve growth and improve their profi tability, 

through further enhancement of our franchiser function. 

We are working to increase daily sales by strictly enforcing 

service, quality and cleanliness (SQ&C) with the aim of 

maximizing customer satisfaction, improving precision in the 

ordering of merchandise to prevent product shortages, and 

strengthening merchandising to raise the value of daily sales 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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per store. Efforts to improve merchandising include the use 

of fi ve temperatures zones, ranging from frozen to hot, in the 

handling of products, enabling the creation of new product 

categories and the development of new products. 

 In addition, we will continue working to improve our 

universal services by expanding the menu of services off ered 

utilizing our current telecommunications infrastructure, 

which includes an electronic money settlement service and 

our T-POINT program, so as to further enhance customer 

convenience. 

 With regard to store development, we again have many 

new store openings planned in the current term. Our goal 

is to maintain our dominance in selected areas of Japan’s 47 

prefectures, but especially in the three major metropolises, 

and simultaneously to expand our operations as well as enter 

new markets and attract corporate franchisees. 

 As a result, for the current term we estimate a 2.5% rise 

in daily sales on an existing store basis (with the introduction 

of taspo, accounting for a one percentage point rise in the 

daily sales total), a 0.08 of a percentage point improvement 

in the gross profit ratio to 29.26% (with the introduction 

of taspo  expected to exert a downward effect of 0.19 of a 

percentage point on the gross profi t ratio). We plan to open 

550 new stores, and close 350 stores, and are targeting daily 

sales of ¥445,000 at new stores. With regard to our overseas 

operations, we plan to continue actively expanding in various 

markets in Asia and in the U.S.

 In our e-commerce operations, which are being 

managed by the company famima.com. Co., Ltd., we have 

developed new contents for Famiport Multimedia Terminals, 

and have expanded our lineup of original products. The 

Famima Credit Corporation has formed an alliance with the 

Culture Convenience Club Group. The collaboration with the 

Culture Convenience Club Group not only allows for enhanced 

customer convenience through the mutual sharing of card 

points, but also will enable Famima Credit Corporation to 

strengthen its revenue base.

 Our target for the current term, on a consolidated basis, 

is for an 11.4% decline in operating revenues to ¥282,900 

million (US$2,694 million), a 3.8% rise in operating income 

to ¥32,400 million (US$309 million), and for net income of 

¥16,600 million (US$158 million), up 1.0% year on year. 

 With regard to revenue recognition of famima.com. Co., 

Ltd., commission revenues from consignment agreements 

which had previously been disclosed on a gross basis (i.e. 

with the posting of both gross commission revenues and 

corresponding expenses) are now being reported on a net 

basis (as net commission revenues) in line with the Accounting 

Standards Board of Japan statement No. 17 “Practical Solution 

on Revenue Recognition of Software Transactions” (released 

March 30, 2006). Our target for operating revenue takes this 

accounting change into consideration. We expect this change 

to have no material impact on our earnings results.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

08/2
09/2
(Est.)

YoY 
diff erence

Average daily 
sales (total stores; 
thousands of yen)

471 490 19

Growth rate of 
average daily sales 
per existing store (%)

0.9 2.5 1.6

Gross profit ratio (%) 29.18 29.26 0.08

Average daily 
sales (new stores;
thousands of yen)

425 445 20

Store openings 515 550 35

Store closures 330 350 20

    (Millions of yen)

08/2
09/2
(Est.)

YoY
change

Operating revenues 319,439 282,900 (11.4)%

Operating income 31,214 32,400 3.8%

Net income 16,438 16,600 1.0%

Business Performance Results (consolidated)

Operational Results (non-consolidated)

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.
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The following section outlines some of the main risks relat-

ing to the FamilyMart Group’s operations that could poten-

tially have a signifi cant impact on investors’ decisions.

 Statements contained within this section that refer to 

matters in the future have been determined to the best of 

our knowledge as of the end of the reporting term.

(1) Impact of Legislation

As part of its operations in Japan and other countries around 

the world, the FamilyMart Group is subject to laws, regula-

tions and official authorization relating to matters such as 

food safety, fair trade and environmental protection.

 Although the FamilyMart Group will make every eff ort 

to comply with such legislation, future developments such as 

unexpected changes to the relevant legislation or diff erences 

of opinion with the authorities could potentially have an 

impact on the FamilyMart Group’s performance of its opera-

tions, results and fi nancial position. Similarly, the FamilyMart 

Group’s performance of its operations, results and financial 

position could also be affected by new, unforeseen costs 

arising as a result of compliance with the aforementioned 

legislation.

 In overseas countries in particular, any significant 

deviation from the grounds upon which our business plans 

are based as a result of developments such as unexpected 

changes to legislation or political or economic factors could 

potentially have an impact on the FamilyMart Group’s perfor-

mance of its operations, results and fi nancial position.

(2) Trends in Demand

The FamilyMart Group primarily runs convenience store 

operations, an area in which demand is affected to a large 

extent by the climate and economic situation (business cli-

mates, consumer spending, etc.) in Japan and other countries 

in which we operate.

 Furthermore, unforeseen natural or manmade disasters 

in Japan or other countries in which we operate, such as 

earthquakes, epidemics, fi res, acts of terrorism, or war, could 

potentially delay or prevent product supplies to our stores 

or affect our ability to continue operations in the event of 

physical damage to stores or other such factors.

 The above factors could all potentially have an impact 

on the FamilyMart Group’s performance of its operations, 

results and fi nancial position.

(3) Food Safety

As part of its convenience store operations, The FamilyMart 

Group provides consumers with items of food. In the unfor-

tunate event of the provision of unqualifi ed foods resulting 

in problems such as food poisoning, the FamilyMart Group’s 

performance of its operations, results and fi nancial position 

could potentially be aff ected due to factors such as a decline 

in sales due to reduced levels of consumer confidence or 

generation of costs for compensation of damages.

 By setting out rigorous quality standards and establish-

ing a consistent management system in conjunction with 

our suppliers covering everything from production to sale, 

the FamilyMart Group makes every possible eff ort to ensure 

adequate levels of hygiene.

(4) Handling Personal Data

Over the course of its operations, the FamilyMart Group col-

lects and retains personal data principally on its customers. 

In the unfortunate event that personal data is leaked or any 

such similar event, the FamilyMart Group’s performance of 

its operations, results and fi nancial position could potentially 

be aff ected due to a loss of confi dence from general public, 

damage to the company’s reputation, a decline in sales or 

generation of costs for compensation of damages.

 In order to prevent illegal access to personal data, 

leakages or any other such problems, the FamilyMart Group 

implements a range of organizational, human, physical 

and technical security control measures, all of which are 

widely recognized as being highly reliable, and adequately 

supervises all operators handling personal data as necessary. 

In November 2006, the FamilyMart Group became the first 

convenience store chain operator to be accredited for the use 

of Privacy Mark.

Operational and Other Risks
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

  Thousands of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

 2008 2007 2008

ASSETS

Current assets:

 Cash and cash equivalents ................................................................................  ¥  98,844 ¥  69,551 $   941,371

 Time deposits ....................................................................................................  5 5 48

 Marketable securities (Note 5) ............................................................................  3,771 5,980 35,914

 Receivables:

  Due from franchised stores (Note 4) ...............................................................  8,449 8,949 80,467

  Other .............................................................................................................  19,654 19,283 187,181

  Allowance for doubtful receivables .................................................................  (289) (1,274) (2,752)

 Merchandise and supplies ..................................................................................  8,100 8,446 77,143

 Deferred tax assets (Note 11) .............................................................................  2,551 2,342 24,295

 Prepaid expenses and other current assets ........................................................  18,490 17,647 176,095

  Total current assets .......................................................................................  159,575 130,929 1,519,762

Property and store facilities (Note 6):

 Land ..................................................................................................................  11,850 12,587 112,857

 Buildings and structures .....................................................................................  54,736 54,028 521,295

 Machinery and equipment ..................................................................................  3,486 3,673 33,200

 Furniture and fi xtures ..........................................................................................  36,660 38,324 349,143

 Construction in progress ....................................................................................  939 1,084 8,943

  Total ..............................................................................................................  107,671 109,696 1,025,438

 Accumulated depreciation ..................................................................................  (54,976) (54,438) (523,581)

  Net property and store facilities......................................................................  52,695 55,258 501,857

Investments and other assets:

 Investment securities (Note 5) ............................................................................  8,544 10,709 81,371

 Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries and 
   associated companies (Notes 3 and 17)...........................................................  18,633 16,178 177,457

 Software ............................................................................................................  5,168 4,673 49,219

 Goodwill (Note 7) ...............................................................................................  2,602 786 24,781

 Leasehold deposits  ...........................................................................................  91,273 86,149 869,267

 Deferred tax assets (Note 11) .............................................................................  3,775 3,292 35,953

 Other assets ......................................................................................................  9,006 7,282 85,771

  Total investments and other assets ................................................................  139,001 129,069 1,323,819

Total  .....................................................................................................................  ¥351,271 ¥315,256 $3,345,438

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries       February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007
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  Thousands of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

 2008 2007 2008

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities:

 Short-term bank loans (Note 8) ..........................................................................  ¥      309 ¥       617 $       2,943

 Payables:

  Trade notes ...................................................................................................  741 784 7,057

  Trade accounts for franchised and Company-owned stores ..........................  64,763 60,563 616,790

  Due to franchised stores (Note 4) ..................................................................  3,013 2,839 28,695

  Other .............................................................................................................  17,281 15,447 164,581

 Income taxes payable (Note 11) .........................................................................  7,135 4,627 67,952

 Deposit received (Note 4) ...................................................................................  42,230 35,601 402,190

 Accrued expenses .............................................................................................  3,980 3,343 37,905

 Allowance for impairment loss on leased property (Notes 6 and 12) ...................  225 188 2,143

 Other current liabilities ........................................................................................  2,252 2,354 21,448

  Total current liabilities .....................................................................................  141,929 126,363 1,351,704

Long-term liabilities:

 Liability for retirement benefi ts (Note 9) ...............................................................  5,734 5,612 54,610

 Leasehold deposits from franchised stores ........................................................  10,420 10,555 99,238

 Allowance for impairment loss on leased property (Notes 6 and 12) ...................  952 747 9,067

 Other long-term liabilities ....................................................................................  955 824 9,095

  Total long-term liabilities .................................................................................  18,061 17,738 172,010

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Notes 12, 14 and 17)

Equity (Notes 10 and 16):

 Common stock—authorized, 250,000,000 shares; issued, 97,683,133 shares ...  16,659 16,659 158,657

 Capital surplus ...................................................................................................  17,388 17,869 165,600

 Retained earnings ..............................................................................................  157,901 146,273 1,503,819

 Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities (Note 5) .............................  (1,062) 139 (10,114)

 Foreign currency translation adjustments ...........................................................  (44) (200) (419)

 Treasury stock—at cost, 2,358,840 shares in 2008 and 5,284,600 shares in 2007 ...  (7,605) (17,038) (72,429)

  Total ..............................................................................................................  183,237 163,702 1,745,114

 Minority interests ................................................................................................  8,044 7,453 76,610

  Total equity ....................................................................................................  191,281 171,155 1,821,724

Total .......................................................................................................................  ¥351,271 ¥315,256 $3,345,438

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

  Thousands of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

 2008 2007 2008

Operating revenues:

 Commission from franchised stores (Note 4) ......................................................  ¥150,351 ¥142,294 $1,431,914

 Net sales ............................................................................................................  147,856 134,506 1,408,152

 Other operating revenues (Notes 3 and 4) ..........................................................  21,232 21,049 202,210

  Total operating revenues ................................................................................  319,439 297,849 3,042,276

Operating expenses:

 Cost of sales ......................................................................................................  118,292 108,839 1,126,590

 Selling, general and administrative expenses (Notes 7, 9, 12 and 17) .................  169,933 159,401 1,618,410

  Total operating expenses ...............................................................................  288,225 268,240 2,745,000

  Operating income ..........................................................................................  31,214 29,609 297,276

Other income (expenses):

 Interest and dividend income .............................................................................  1,870 1,239 17,810

 Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies (Note 6) ....  767 204 7,305

 Gain on sales of marketable and investment securities—net ..............................  86 180 819

 Loss on devaluation of marketable and investment securities .............................  (33) (1) (315)

 Loss on disposals/sales of property and store facilities—net ..............................  (2,427) (2,441) (23,114)

 Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Notes 6 and 12) ..................................  (1,966) (1,437) (18,724)

 Loss on cancellations of lease contracts ............................................................  (1,411) (1,027) (13,438)

 Other—net (Note 13) ..........................................................................................  732 424 6,971

  Other expenses—net .....................................................................................  (2,382) (2,859) (22,686)

Income before income taxes and minority interests .............................................  28,832 26,750 274,590

Income taxes (Note 11):

 Current ..............................................................................................................  11,654 9,843 110,991

 Deferred .............................................................................................................  113 1,164 1,076

  Total income taxes .........................................................................................  11,767 11,007 112,067

Minority interests in net income ............................................................................  627 774 5,971

Net income ............................................................................................................  ¥  16,438 ¥  14,969 $   156,552

 Yen U.S. dollars

Per share of common stock (Notes 2.p and 15):

 Basic net income ...............................................................................................  ¥173.5 ¥158.8 $1.65

 Cash dividends applicable to the year ................................................................  60.0 46.0 0.57

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries    Years Ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

 Thousands     Millions of yen

 Outstanding    Unrealized Foreign 
 number of    gain (loss) on currency 
 shares of Common Capital Retained  available-for-sale  translation Treasury  Minority Total
 common stock stock surplus earnings securities adjustments stock Total interests equity

Balance, March 1, 2006 .........................................  96,843 ¥16,659 ¥17,057 ¥135,576 ¥    878 ¥(168) ¥ (1,769) ¥168,233  ¥168,233

 Reclassifi ed balance as of

   February 28, 2006 (Note 2.j) ...........................          ¥7,525 7,525

 Net income ......................................................     14,969    14,969  14,969

 Cash dividends, ¥44.5 per share .......................     (4,208)    (4,208)  (4,208)

 Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors .........     (64)    (64)  (64)

 Purchase of treasury stock ................................  (5,005)      (16,449) (16,449)  (16,449)

 Sales of treasury stock ......................................  561  812    1,180 1,992  1,992

 Net change in the year ......................................      (739) (32)  (771) (72) (843)

Balance, February 28, 2007 ...................................  92,399 16,659 17,869 146,273 139 (200) (17,038) 163,702 7,453 171,155

 Net income ......................................................     16,438    16,438  16,438

 Cash dividends, ¥51.0 per share .......................     (4,794)    (4,794)  (4,794)

  Bonuses to a foreign consolidated subsidiary’s

  directors and corporate auditors ........................     (16)    (16)  (16)

 Purchase of treasury stock ................................  (5)      (16) (16)  (16)

 Sales of treasury stock ......................................  2,930  (481)    9,449 8,968  8,968

 Net change in the year ......................................      (1,201) 156  (1,045) 591 (454)

Balance, February 29, 2008 ...................................  95,324 ¥16,659 ¥17,388 ¥157,901 ¥(1,062) ¥  (44) ¥ (7,605) ¥183,237 ¥8,044 ¥191,281

 Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)

     Unrealized Foreign 
     gain (loss) on currency 
  Common Capital Retained  available-for-sale  translation Treasury  Minority Total
  stock surplus earnings securities adjustments stock Total interests equity

Balance, February 28, 2007 .....................................................  $158,657 $170,181 $1,393,076 $   1,324 $(1,905) $(162,267) $1,559,066 $70,981 $1,630,047

 Net income ........................................................................    156,552    156,552  156,552

 Cash dividends, $0.49 per share .........................................    (45,657)    (45,657)  (45,657)

  Bonuses to a foreign consolidated subsidiary’s

  directors and corporate auditors .........................................   (152)    (152)  (152)

 Purchase of treasury stock ..................................................       (152) (152)  (152)

 Sales of treasury stock ........................................................   (4,581)    89,990 85,409  85,409

 Net change in the year ........................................................     (11,438) 1,486  (9,952) 5,629 (4,323)

Balance, February 29, 2008 .....................................................  $158,657 $165,600 $1,503,819 $(10,114) $   (419) $  (72,429) $1,745,114 $76,610 $1,821,724

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries    Years Ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

  Thousands of 
 Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 1)

 2008 2007 2008

Operating activities:

 Income before income taxes and minority interests ............................................  ¥  28,832 ¥  26,750 $   274,590

 Adjustments for:
  Income taxes—paid ......................................................................................  (9,211) (11,085) (87,724)

  Depreciation and amortization .......................................................................  10,373 11,622 98,790

  Reversal of allowance for doubtful receivables ...............................................  19 159 181

  Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies ....  (767) (204) (7,305)

  Gain on devaluation/sale of marketable and investment securities—net .........  (77) (200) (733)

  Loss on disposals/sales of property and store facilities—net ..........................  2,427 2,441 23,114

  Loss on cancellations of lease contracts ........................................................  970 772 9,238

  Loss on impairment of long-lived assets ........................................................  1,966 1,437 18,724

  Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors .................................................  (16) (64) (152)

  Changes in assets and liabilities:
   Decrease (increase) in due from/to franchised stores—net ........................  678 (581) 6,457

   Decrease (increase) in merchandise and supplies ......................................  324 (1,275) 3,086

   Increase in payables—trade ......................................................................  4,297 447 40,924

   Increase in deposit received  .....................................................................  6,777 4,269 64,543

   Increase in liability for retirement benefi ts ...................................................  124 250 1,181

  Other—net ....................................................................................................  2,659 355 25,324

    Total adjustments .................................................................................  20,543 8,343 195,648

    Net cash provided by operating activities ..............................................  49,375 35,093 470,238

Investing activities:

 Increase in time deposits—net ...........................................................................  (1,027) (1,076) (9,781)

 Purchases of marketable and investment securities ...........................................  (120,574) (139,657) (1,148,324)

 Purchases of investment in subsidiaries and associated companies ...................  (2,864) (930) (27,276)

 Proceeds from sales and redemption at maturity of marketable and 
   investment securities ........................................................................................  122,757 138,482 1,169,114

 Payments for long-term loans ............................................................................  (1) (3,984) (10)

 Purchases of property and store facilities, software and other intangible assets ...  (11,158) (17,804) (106,266)

 Proceeds from sales of property and store facilities, software and 
   other intangible assets .....................................................................................  1,712 4,653 16,305

 Payments of leasehold deposits .........................................................................  (15,222) (15,724) (144,971)

 Refunds of leasehold deposits ...........................................................................  2,979 3,033 28,371

 Receipts of leasehold deposits from franchised stores .......................................  1,760 1,427 16,762

 Refunds of leasehold deposits to franchised stores ............................................  (1,597) (1,205) (15,210)

 Payments for acquisition of business..................................................................  (1,255) (299) (11,952)

 Other .................................................................................................................  (103) 146 (981)

    Net cash used in investing activities ......................................................  (24,593) (32,938) (234,219)

 
Financing activities:

 Decrease in short-term bank loans .....................................................................  (370)  (3,524)

 Purchase of treasury stock .................................................................................  (16) (16,463) (152)

 Proceeds from sales of treasury stock ................................................................  8,968 1,992 85,409

 Contribution from minority interest shareholders .................................................  1,435 99 13,667

 Dividends paid ...................................................................................................  (4,794) (4,209) (45,657)

 Dividends paid to minority interest shareholders .................................................  (1,059) (957) (10,086)

 Other .................................................................................................................  (208) 383 (1,981)

    Net cash provided by (used in) fi nancing activities.................................  3,956 (19,155) 37,676

Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents ............  555 362 5,286

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .........................................  29,293 (16,638) 278,981

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .....................................................  69,551 86,189  662,390

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ...............................................................  ¥  98,844 ¥  69,551 $   941,371

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries    Years Ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
FamilyMart Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries    Years Ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have 

been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the 

Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (formerly, the 

Japanese Securities and Exchange Law) and its related accounting 

regulations, and in conformity with generally accepted account-

ing principles in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which are different in 

certain respects as to application and disclosure requirements of 

International Financial Reporting Standards.

 In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain 

reclassifi cations and rearrangements have been made to the con-

solidated fi nancial statements issued domestically in order to pres-

ent them in a form which is more familiar to readers outside Japan. 

In addition, certain reclassifi cations have been made in the 2007 

consolidated fi nancial statements to conform to the classifi cations 

used in 2008.

 The consolidated fi nancial statements are stated in Japanese 

yen, the currency of the country in which FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

(the “Company”) is incorporated and operates. The translations of 

Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included 

solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been 

made at the rate of ¥105 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange 

at February 29, 2008. Such translations should not be construed 

as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be con-

verted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

a. Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements include 

the accounts of the Company and its seven signifi cant subsidiaries 

(together, the “Group”).

 Under the control or influence concept, those companies in 

which the Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control 

over operations are fully consolidated, and those companies over 

which the Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are 

accounted for by the equity method.

 Investments in 4 (3 in 2007) unconsolidated subsidiaries and 15 

(12 in 2007) associated companies are accounted for by the equity 

method, including Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd., which was not 

included previously as an associated company accounted for by the 

equity method, because Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd. was established 

in July 2007.

 Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and 

associated companies are stated at cost. If the equity method of 

accounting had been applied to the investments in these companies, 

the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements 

would not be material.

 The differences between the cost and underlying net equity of  

investments in consolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 

at acquisition are included in goodwill and are amortized on a straight-

line basis over fi ve years.

 All signifi cant intercompany balances and transactions have been 

eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in 

assets resulting from transactions within the Group is eliminated.

b. Cash equivalents—Cash equivalents are short-term investments 

that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to insignifi -

cant risk of changes in value.

 Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificate of deposits, 

commercial paper, bond funds and short-term government securities, 

all of which mature or become due within three months of the date of 

acquisition.

c. Merchandise and supplies—Most merchandise is primarily valued 

at cost determined by the retail method. Supplies are stated at cost 

determined by the last purchase price method.

d. Marketable and investment securities—Marketable and invest-

ment securities are classifi ed and accounted for, depending on man-

agement’s intent, as follows: (1) held-to-maturity debt securities, which 

are expected to be held-to-maturity with the positive intent and ability 

to hold to maturity, are reported at amortized cost and (2) available-

for-sale securities, other than (1), are reported at fair value, with unreal-

ized gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate 

component of equity.

 However, in a foreign consolidated subsidiary, the available-for-

sale securities are reported at the fair value, with unrealized gains and 

losses charged to income.

 Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost 

determined by the moving-average method. For other than temporary 

declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net realiz-

able value by a charge to income.

e. Property and store facilities—Property and store facilities are 

stated at cost. Depreciation of property and store facilities of the 

Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is computed 

substantially by the declining-balance method at rates based on the 

estimated useful lives of the assets, while the straight-line method is 

1. Basis of presenting consolidated fi nancial statements

2. Summary of signifi cant accounting policies
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applied to the property and store facilities of consolidated foreign sub-

sidiaries. Buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998 are depreciated 

using the straight-line method. The range of useful lives is principally 

from 2 to 50 years for buildings and structures and from 2 to 20 years 

for furniture and fi xtures.

f. Long-lived assets—The Group reviews its long-lived assets for 

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the 

carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. 

An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of 

an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future 

cash fl ows expected to result from the continued use and eventual 

disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be 

measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset 

exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted 

cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the 

asset or the net selling price at disposition.

g. Software—Capitalized software is stated at cost less accumulated 

amortization, which is calculated by the straight-line method over the 

estimated useful lives (fi ve years).

h. Goodwill—Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated amortiza-

tion, which is calculated by the straight-line method over the estimated 

useful lives (fi ve years).

i. Retirement and pension plans—The Company and certain con-

solidated subsidiaries have funded and/or unfunded retirement benefi t 

plans for employees. In respect of the funded plans, a part of the 

annual provisions is funded as contributory pension plans with an out-

side trustee.

 The Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries 

accounted for the liability for retirement benefi ts based on projected 

benefi t obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

 Foreign consolidated subsidiaries provide for the amount of retire-

ment benefi ts required by local accounting standards.

 Retirement benefi ts to directors and corporate auditors are pro-

vided at the amount which would be required if all directors and cor-

porate auditors retired at the balance sheet date.

j. Presentation of equity—On December 9, 2005, the Accounting 

Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) published a new accounting 

standard for presentation of equity. Under this accounting standard, 

certain items which were previously presented as liabilities are now 

presented as components of equity. Such items include stock acquisi-

tion rights, minority interests, and any deferred gain or loss on deriva-

tives accounted for under hedge accounting. This standard is effective 

for fi scal years ending on or after May 1, 2006. The balances of such 

items as of February 28, 2006 were classifi ed as separate compo-

nents of equity as of March 1, 2006 in the consolidated statement of 

changes in equity.

k. Leases—All leases are accounted for as operating leases. Under 

the Japanese accounting standard for leases, finance leases that 

deem to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee 

are to be capitalized, while other fi nance leases are permitted to be 

accounted for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capital-

ized” information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial 

statements.

 However, in certain foreign consolidated subsidiaries, leases are 

accounted for as capital leases.

l. Income taxes—The provision for income taxes is computed based 

on the pretax income included in the consolidated statements of 

income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred 

tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences 

of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax 

bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by apply-

ing currently enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.

m. Foreign currency transactions—All short-term and long-term 

monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies 

are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance 

sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from translation are 

recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

n. Foreign currency financial statements—The balance sheet 

accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into 

Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of each balance sheet 

date except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate.

 Differences arising from such translation were shown as “Foreign 

currency translation adjustments” in a separate component of equity.

 Revenue and expense accounts of the consolidated foreign 

subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the annual average 

exchange rate.

o. Derivatives—The Company uses derivative fi nancial instruments 

to manage its exposures to fl uctuations in foreign exchange. Foreign 

exchange forward contracts are utilized by the Company to reduce 

foreign currency exchange risks. The Company does not enter into 

derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

 Derivative fi nancial instruments and foreign currency transactions 

are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, 

and gains or losses on derivative transactions are recognized in the 

consolidated statements of income.

p. Per share information—Basic net income per share is computed by 

dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted-

average number of common shares outstanding for the period.

 Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because it is 

anti-dilutive.

 Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consoli-

dated statements of income are dividends applicable to the respective 

years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.
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q. New accounting pronouncements

Lease accounting—On March 30, 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ 

Statement No.13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions,” 

which revised the existing accounting standard for lease transactions 

issued on June 17, 1993. The revised accounting standard for lease 

transactions is effective for fi scal years beginning on or after April 1, 

2008 with early adoption permitted for fi scal years beginning on or 

after April 1, 2007.

Lessee

Under the existing accounting standard, fi nance leases that deem to 

transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee are to be cap-

italized, however, other fi nance leases are permitted to be accounted 

for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” informa-

tion is disclosed in the note to the lessee’s fi nancial statements. The 

revised accounting standard requires that all fi nance lease transac-

tions should be capitalized recognizing lease assets and lease obliga-

tions in the balance sheet.

Unification of accounting policies applied to foreign subsidiar-

ies for consolidated fi nancial statements—Under Japanese GAAP, 

a company currently can use the financial statements of foreign 

subsidiaries which are prepared in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles in their respective jurisdictions for its consolida-

tion process unless they are clearly unreasonable. On May 17, 2006, 

the ASBJ issued ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No. 18, 

“Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to 

Foreign Subsidiaries for Consolidated Financial Statements.” The 

new task force prescribes: (1) the accounting policies and procedures 

applied to a parent company and its subsidiaries for similar transac-

tions and events under similar circumstances should in principle be 

unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, 

(2) financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in accor-

dance with either International Financial Reporting Standards 

or the generally accepted accounting principles in the United 

States tentatively may be used for the consolidation process, 

(3) however, the following items should be adjusted in the consolida-

tion process so that net income is accounted for in accordance with 

Japanese GAAP unless they are not material;

(1) Amortization of goodwill

(2)  Actuarial gains and losses of defi ned benefi t plans recognized out-

side profi t or loss

(3) Capitalization of intangible assets arising from development phases

(4)  Fair value measurement of investment properties, and the revalua-

tion model for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

(5) Retrospective application when accounting policies are changed

(6) Accounting for net income attributable to a minority interest

 The new task force is effective for fiscal years beginning on or 

after April 1, 2008 with early adoption permitted.

The Company’s main shareholder is Family Corporation Inc., which 

owns 31.46% of the total outstanding shares of the Company. 

Family Corporation Inc. is 94.99% owned by ITOCHU Corporation, 

which distributes merchandise and supplies for “FamilyMart” stores 

in Japan.

 The Company is a franchiser of “FamilyMart” stores for retail 

sales of daily necessities to consumers. The Company allows each 

independent franchisee to operate convenience stores using the 

specific designs and name of “FamilyMart” and provides them 

with related managerial and technical know-how under a franchise 

agreement. Under the agreement, each franchisee is provided with 

a variety of services and advice on the operation of convenience 

stores from the Company. In return, the franchisee is required to 

pay continuing franchise commissions to the Company based 

on certain percentages of the respective franchised store’s gross 

margin (net sales less cost of sales).

 The Company allows area franchised companies to be franchis-

ers of “FamilyMart” stores in each area, including outside Japan. 

Area franchised companies are required to pay continuing royalty 

fees to the Company and the Company records this as “Other 

operating revenues.” Area franchised companies as of February 

29, 2008, are as follows:

3. Related parties and organization

Name of area franchiser   
Area

 

The Company’s
ownership in

area franchiser

Subsidiaries:

Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. ................................................................................... Taiwan 43.37%

Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. ...................................................................................... Thailand 90.41

FAMIMA CORPORATION........................................................................................ The United States of America 63.52

Associated companies:

Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd.  ................................................................................ Okinawa, Japan 48.98

Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd. ............................................................................ Kagoshima and Miyazaki, Japan 49.00

Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd. ............................................................................... Hokkaido, Japan 49.00

BOKWANG FAMILYMART CO., LTD. ............................................................................. Korea 21.45
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Marketable and investment securities as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, consisted of the following:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Current:

Government and corporate bonds .............................................................................  ¥1,000

Trust fund investments ............................................................................................ ¥3,771 4,980 $35,914

 Total .................................................................................................... ¥3,771 ¥5,980 $35,914

As discussed in Note 3 under the franchise agreement, each 

franchisee is provided with a variety of services and advice on the 

operation of convenience stores by the Company, and, in return, 

the franchisee is required to pay continuing franchise commissions 

to the Company based on certain percentages of the respective 

franchised store’s gross margin (net sales less cost of sales). As 

the franchiser, the Company accounts for such franchise commis-

sions on an accrual basis.

 The term of a franchise agreement is generally for ten years and 

may be extended or renewed upon expiration subject to renegotia-

tion of contract terms between the Company and the franchisee. 

The franchise agreement currently in use provides that, at the 

commencement of the agreement, the franchisee shall make a 

cash payment to the Company in the amount of ¥1,500,000 which 

is credited to income of the Company as “Other operating rev-

enues” for the lump-sum franchise fee and which shall be spent 

for services such as research, training and preparations of store 

opening provided by the Company. In addition, the franchisee shall 

advance another ¥1,500,000 to the Company as a deposit for pur-

chases and it is credited to “Payables—Due to franchised stores,” 

accordingly.

 Under the franchise agreement, each franchised store shall 

order merchandise and the store is supplied from suppliers using 

the centralized buy-order system maintained by the Company. 

The Company then accumulates such purchase orders by the 

franchised stores and pays the purchase amounts to suppliers on 

a monthly basis on behalf of the franchised stores. The Company 

records account receivable due from franchised stores for such 

purchases.

 Each franchised store shall make a remittance of cash from 

sales to the Company on a daily basis. Furthermore, the franchised 

stores collect utility payments from customers on behalf of utility 

service providers, such as electric power companies and telecom-

munication companies, which are remitted to the Company on a 

daily basis. The receipts of such charges are recorded as a liability 

due to utility service suppliers and included in “Deposit received” 

on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

 The monthly payments to purchase merchandise and other 

goods on behalf of each franchised store and the daily receipts 

of cash from the franchised stores are accumulated and offset 

against each other to present the net balance due to or from each 

franchised store.

 The balances of “Receivables—Due from franchised stores” 

and “Payables—Due to franchised stores” in the accompanying 

consolidated balance sheets represent such net balances between 

the Company and franchised stores at the balance sheet date.

4. Transactions with franchised stores

5. Marketable and investment securities

FamilyMart China Holding Co., Ltd. (“FMCH”), a 75.00% owned 

subsidiary, is a holding company of China CVS (Cayman Islands) 

Holding Corp. (“CCH”). CCH, a 49.50% owned associated com-

pany, is a holding company of Shanghai FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

and Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Shanghai FamilyMart Co., Ltd., 

a wholly owned associated company, is an area franchiser in 

Shanghai, China and Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd., a wholly owned 

associated company, is an area franchiser in Suzhou, China. 

 In addition, FMCH is a holding company of Guangzhou 

FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Guangzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd., a 49.50% 

owned associated company, is an area franchiser in Guangzhou, 

China.

 SFM Holding Co., Ltd., a 96.17% owned subsidiary, is a hold-

ing company of Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

 In addition to the aforementioned, there are a number of sub-

sidiaries and associated companies whose principal businesses 

are other than operating convenience stores.

 Famima.com Co., Ltd., a 50.50% owned subsidiary, supports 

E-commerce operations.

 Famima Credit Corporation, a 30.10% owned associated com-

pany, provides financial services, such as credit card settlement 

and related services for its customers.

 famima Retail Service Co., Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, pro-

vides accounting and stocktaking services to “FamilyMart” stores 

in Japan.

 Family Chef Co., Ltd., a 30.00% owned associated company, 

produces and distributes delicatessen items to “FamilyMart” stores 

in Japan.
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Available-for-sale:

 Equity securities .................................................................................... 6,079 1,000 810 6,269

 Debt securities ...................................................................................... 4,959 21  4,980

Held-to-maturity ......................................................................................... 4,991 9 36 4,964

 Thousands of U.S. dollars 

  Unrealized  Unrealized  Fair 
February 29, 2008 Cost gains losses value

Securities classifi ed as:

Available-for-sale:

 Equity securities .................................................................................... $57,581 $3,991 $21,162 $40,410

 Debt securities ...................................................................................... 35,914   35,914

Held-to-maturity ......................................................................................... 38,038 343  38,381

The carrying amounts of held-to-maturity debt securities included in cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated balance sheet were 

¥13,988 million ($133,219 thousand) at February 29, 2008.

Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were as follows:

 
Carrying amount

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Available-for-sale—Equity securities ...............................................................................  ¥307 ¥449 $2,923

The carrying values of debt securities by contractual maturities for securities classifi ed as held-to-maturity at February 29, 2008, are as follows:

  Thousands of 
 Millions of yen   U.S. dollars 

Due after one year through fi ve years .......................................................................  ¥3,994 $38,038

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Non-current: 

Marketable equity securities ....................................................................................  ¥4,243 ¥  6,269 $40,410

Government and corporate bonds .............................................................................  3,994 3,991 38,038

Non-marketable equity securities .............................................................................  307 449 2,923

 Total ....................................................................................................  ¥8,544 ¥10,709 $81,371

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities at February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were 

as follows:

 Millions of yen

  Unrealized  Unrealized  Fair 
February 29, 2008 Cost gains losses value

Securities classifi ed as:

Available-for-sale:

 Equity securities .................................................................................... ¥6,046 ¥419 ¥2,222 ¥4,243

 Debt securities ...................................................................................... 3,771   3,771

Held-to-maturity ......................................................................................... 3,994 36  4,030

 
February 28, 2007

Securities classifi ed as:

6. Long-lived assets

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of the 

years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 and, as a 

result, recognized an impairment loss of ¥1,966 million ($18,724 

thousand) and ¥1,437 million as other expense for each store due 

mainly to continuous operating losses. The carrying amount of 

those assets was written down to the recoverable amount.
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The Group recognized impairment losses on the following fi xed assets and leased property for the years ended February 29, 2008 and 

February 28, 2007:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

Fixed assets and leased property 2008 2007 2008

Land .......................................................................................................................  ¥   196 ¥   407 $  1,867

Building ..................................................................................................................  963 479 9,171

Leased property .....................................................................................................  542 378 5,162

Others ....................................................................................................................  265 173 2,524

 Total ....................................................................................................  ¥1,966 ¥1,437 $18,724

7. Goodwill
Goodwill as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, consisted of the following:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Consolidation goodwill ............................................................................................  ¥   995 ¥109 $  9,476

Acquisition goodwill ................................................................................................  1,607 677 15,305

 Total ....................................................................................................  ¥2,602 ¥786 $24,781

The recoverable amount of the stores which the Group plans 

to sell was measured by its net selling price at disposition. The 

recoverable amount of other stores was measured at their value in 

use and the discount rate used for computation of present value 

of future cash fl ows was 7.31% and 9.71% for the years ended 

February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, respectively.

 In addition, some associated companies accounted for by equity 

method recognized impairment losses using the same methodology. 

The Group recognized ¥124 million ($1,181 thousand) and ¥206 mil-

lion for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, 

respectively, of losses on impairment of long-lived assets as “Equity in 

earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies.” 

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Projected benefi t obligation ....................................................................................  ¥15,493 ¥14,871 $147,552

Fair value of plan assets..........................................................................................  (7,572) (7,843) (72,114)

Unrecognized actuarial loss ....................................................................................  (2,707) (1,900) (25,781)

Unrecognized transitional obligation .............................................................................  (15) (10) (142)

Net liability ..............................................................................................................  ¥  5,199 ¥  5,118 $  49,515

Short-term bank loans as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 

2007, consisted of bank overdrafts. The annual interest rate appli-

cable to the short-term bank loan was 4.3% and 6.4% at February 

29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, respectively.

Amortization charged to selling, general and administrative 

expenses for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 

28, 2007, was ¥516 million ($4,914 thousand) and ¥473 million, 

respectively.

8. Short-term bank loans

The Company and its certain consolidated subsidiaries have 

severance payment plans for employees, directors and corporate 

auditors.

 Under most circumstances, employees terminating their 

employment are entitled to retirement benefi ts determined based 

on the rate of pay at the time of termination, years of service and 

certain other factors. Such retirement benefits are made in the 

form of a lump-sum severance payment from the Company or 

from certain consolidated subsidiaries and annuity payments from 

a trustee. Employees are entitled to larger payments if the termination 

is involuntary, by retirement at the mandatory retirement age, by 

death, or by voluntary retirement at certain specifi c ages prior to 

the mandatory retirement age. The liability for retirement benefi ts 

for directors and corporate auditors at February 29, 2008 and Feb-

ruary 28, 2007 is ¥535 million ($5,095 thousand) and ¥494 million, 

respectively. The retirement benefits for directors and corporate 

auditors are paid subject to the approval of the shareholders.

 The liability for employees’ retirement benefits as of February 

29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 consisted of the following:

  

9. Retirement and pension plans
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Retirement benefi ts for directors and corporate auditors are paid 

subject to approval of the shareholders.

 The Company recorded a liability for its unfunded retirement 

benefi ts plan covering all of its directors and corporate auditors. 

The annual provisions for retirement benefits for directors and 

corporate auditors for the years ended February 29, 2008 and 

February 28, 2007 were ¥115 million ($1,095 thousand) and ¥122 

million, respectively.

The components of net periodic benefi t costs for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, are as follows:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Service cost ............................................................................................................  ¥1,144 ¥1,087 $10,895

Interest cost ...........................................................................................................  262 245 2,495

Expected return on plan assets ..............................................................................  (293) (36) (2,790)

Recognized actuarial loss .......................................................................................  178 188 1,695

Amortization of transitional obligation ......................................................................  4 4 38

Net periodic benefi t costs .......................................................................................  ¥1,295 ¥1,488 $12,333

Assumptions used for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, are set forth as follows:

 2008 2007

Discount rate ...................................................................................................... Primarily 1.7% Primarily 1.7%

Expected rate of return on plan assets................................................................ Primarily 2.8% Primarily 0.9%

Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss ............................................................. Primarily 15 years Primarily 15 years

Amortization period of transitional obligation ....................................................... Foreign consolidated Foreign consolidated
     subsidiary—15 years   subsidiary—15 years

10. Equity
Since May 1, 2006, Japanese companies have been subject to the 

Corporate Law of Japan (the “Corporate Law”), which reformed and 

replaced the Commercial Code of Japan with various revisions that 

are, for the most part, applicable to events or transactions which 

occur on or after May 1, 2006 and for the fi scal years ending on or 

after May 1, 2006. The signifi cant provisions in the Corporate Law 

that affect fi nancial and accounting matters are summarized below:

a. Dividends—Under the Corporate Law, companies can pay 

dividends at any time during the fi scal year in addition to the year-

end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders meeting. For 

companies that meet certain criteria such as; (1) having the Board 

of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3) having the Board 

of Corporate Auditors, and (4) the term of service of the directors 

is prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal term by 

its articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare 

dividends (except for dividends in kind) at any time during the fi scal 

year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorpora-

tion. The Company meets all the above criteria.

 The Corporate Law permits companies to distribute dividends-

in-kind (non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limi-

tation and additional requirements.

 Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon 

resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation 

of the company so stipulate. The Corporate Law provides certain 

limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of 

treasury stock. The limitation is defi ned as the amount available for 

distribution to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after 

dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

b. Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve 

and surplus—The Corporate Law requires that an amount equal to 

10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a com-

ponent of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (a com-

ponent of capital surplus) depending on the equity account charged 

upon the payment of such dividends until the total of aggregate 

amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of 

the common stock. Under the Corporate Law, the total amount of 

additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without 

limitation. The Corporate Law also provides that common stock, 

legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and 

retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts under 

certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

c. Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights—The 

Corporate Law also provides for companies to purchase trea-

sury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of 

the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock purchased 

cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the 

shareholders which is determined by specifi c formula. Under the 

Corporate Law, stock acquisition rights, which were previously 

presented as a liabil ity, are now presented as a separate 

component of equity. The Corporate Law also provides that 

companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights 

and treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are 

presented as a separate component of equity or deducted directly 

from stock acquisition rights.
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11. Income taxes

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Deferred tax assets:

Provision for doubtful receivables ............................................................................  ¥   619 ¥   467 $  5,895

Accrued bonuses ...................................................................................................  486 440 4,629

Provision for retirement benefi ts—employees ..........................................................  2,071 2,056 19,724

Provision for retirement benefi ts—directors and corporate auditors..........................  218 201 2,076

Depreciation ...........................................................................................................  60 70 571

Loss on disposals of property and store facilities and cancellations of 
  lease contracts .....................................................................................................  433 432 4,124

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets  ................................................................  1,411 1,674 13,438

Loss on renewal of store management system .......................................................   463 

Enterprise tax payable ............................................................................................  593 362 5,648

Unrealized loss on available for sale securities ........................................................  734  6,990

Tax loss carryforwards ............................................................................................  2,307 2,056 21,971

Other ......................................................................................................................  492 431 4,687

Less valuation allowance ........................................................................................  (2,445) (2,351) (23,286)

 Total ...........................................................................................................  6,979 6,301 66,467

Deferred tax liabilities:

Special reserve for tax purpose depreciation ...........................................................  2 31 19

Undistributed earnings of associated companies ....................................................  651 563 6,200

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities .........................................................   73 

 Total ...........................................................................................................  653        667 6,219

Net deferred tax assets ...........................................................................................  ¥6,326 ¥5,634 $60,248

   Thousands of 
Year ending February 28 (or 29) Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

2009....................................................................................................................... ¥   624 $  5,944

2010....................................................................................................................... 1,091 10,390

2011....................................................................................................................... 1,414 13,467

2012....................................................................................................................... 986 9,390

2013 and thereafter ................................................................................................ 2,824 26,895

 Total ........................................................................................................... ¥6,939 $66,086

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to 

Japanese national and local income taxes which, in the aggregate, 

resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rate of approximately 

41% for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007.

 The tax effects of signifi cant temporary differences and tax loss 

carryforwards which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, are as follows:

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates 

and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying 

consolidated statements of income for the years ended February 

29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 is not material.

 As of February 29, 2008, certain subsidiaries have tax 

loss carryforwards aggregating approximately ¥6,939 million 

($66,086 thousand) which are available to be offset against taxable 

income of such subsidiaries in future years. These tax loss carryfor-

wards, if not utilized, will expire as follows:
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12. Leases

As Lessee

The Group leases certain furniture and fi xtures, software and other 

assets.

 Total rental expenses including lease payments for the years 

ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were ¥13,096 mil-

lion ($124,724 thousand) and ¥11,203 million, respectively.

 The Group recorded impairment losses of ¥542 mill ion 

($5,162 thousand) and ¥378 million on certain leased property 

held under fi nance leases that do not transfer ownership and an 

allowance for impairment loss on leased property for the years 

ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, respectively.

 Pro forma information of leased property such as acquisition 

cost, accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment loss, 

obligation under finance lease, depreciation expense, interest 

expense and other information of fi nance leases that do not trans-

fer ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an “as if capi-

talized” basis for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 

28, 2007, was as follows:

 
Millions of yen 

 2008 2007
 Furniture   Furniture  
 and    and   
 fi xtures Software Total fi xtures Software Total

Acquisition cost .....................  ¥76,640 ¥4,170 ¥80,810 ¥70,616 ¥3,314 ¥73,930

Accumulated depreciation .....  (29,523) (846) (30,369) (25,305) (180) (25,485)

Accumulated impairment loss ...  (1,663)  (1,663) (1,222)  (1,222)

Net leased property ...............  ¥45,454 ¥3,324 ¥48,778 ¥44,089 ¥3,134 ¥47,223

 Thousands of U.S. dollars 

  2008
 Furniture  
 and   
 fi xtures Software Total

Acquisition cost .....................................................................................................  $729,905 $39,714 $769,619

Accumulated depreciation .....................................................................................  (281,172) (8,057) (289,229)

Accumulated impairment loss ................................................................................  (15,838)  (15,838)

Net leased property ...............................................................................................  $432,895 $31,657 $464,552

Obligations under fi nance leases:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Due within one year ................................................................................................  ¥11,028 ¥  9,994 $105,029

Due after one year ..................................................................................................  42,182 41,366 401,733

Total .......................................................................................................................  ¥53,210 ¥51,360 $506,762

Allowance for impairment loss on leased property of ¥1,177 million 

($11,210 thousand) and ¥935 million as of February 29, 2008 and 

February 28, 2007 was not included in obligations under fi nance 

leases.

 The imputed interest expense portion is included in the above 

obligations under fi nance leases.
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Depreciation expense, interest expense and other information under fi nance leases:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Depreciation expense .............................................................................................  ¥10,990 ¥8,899 $104,667

Interest expense .....................................................................................................  1,407  909 13,400

Total .......................................................................................................................  ¥12,397 ¥9,808 $118,067

Reversal of allowance for impairment loss on leased property .................................  ¥     299 ¥   259 $    2,848

Impairment loss ......................................................................................................  542 378 5,162

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not refl ected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income, are 

computed by the straight-line method and the interest method, respectively.

The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating leases as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were as follows:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Due within one year ................................................................................................  ¥1,102 ¥1,035 $10,495

Due after one year ..................................................................................................  5,113 5,619 48,695

Total .......................................................................................................................  ¥6,215 ¥6,654 $59,190

As Lessor

The Group subleases certain land and buildings. The subleases are fi nance leases that do not transfer ownership of leased buildings to the 

lessee. Receivables under such fi nance leases as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were as follows:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Due within one year ................................................................................................  ¥   203 ¥   238 $  1,933

Due after one year ..................................................................................................  1,520 1,964 14,477

Total .......................................................................................................................  ¥1,723 ¥2,202 $16,410

The minimum rental commitments under noncancelable operating subleases as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were as follows:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

Due within one year ................................................................................................  ¥   250 ¥   303 $  2,381

Due after one year ..................................................................................................  1,875 2,456 17,857

Total .......................................................................................................................  ¥2,125 ¥2,759 $20,238

13. Derivatives

The Company enters into foreign currency forward contracts to 

hedge foreign exchange risk associated with certain assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The Company does 

not hold or issue derivatives for trading purposes.

 Derivatives are subject to market risk. Market risk is the expo-

sure created by potential fl uctuations in market conditions, includ-

ing foreign exchange rates. Because the counterparties to those 

derivatives are limited to major international fi nancial institutions, the 

Company does not anticipate any losses arising from credit risk.

 The execution and control of derivatives are controlled by the 

Accounting and Finance Department of the Company in accor-

dance with the Company internal regulation.

 The Company had no derivative contracts outstanding as of 

February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007.

As of February 29, 2008, the Group had the following contingent liabilities:

   Thousands of 
  Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

Guarantee of fi nancial institution loan, borrowed by Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd.  ...  ¥   118 $  1,124

Guarantee of fi nancial institution loan, borrowed by Famima Credit Corporation ........  3,994 38,038

Guarantee of fi nancial institution loan, borrowed by CCH  ..........................................  8 76

14. Contingent liabilities
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15. Net income per share
Basis of computation of basic net income per share (“EPS”) for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 is as follows:

 Millions  Thousands   
 of yen of shares Yen U.S. dollars

 Net Weighted-average  
Year ended February 29, 2008 income shares EPS 

EPS:

Net income  ............................................................................................................  ¥16,438

Bonuses to a foreign consolidated subsidiary’s director and corporate auditors ...... (58)

Net income available to common shareholders ....................................................... ¥16,380 94,425 ¥173.5 $1.65

Year ended February 28, 2007 

EPS:

Net income  ............................................................................................................  ¥14,969

Bonuses to a foreign consolidated subsidiary’s director and corporate auditors ...... (33)

Net income available to common shareholders ....................................................... ¥14,936 94,037 ¥158.8 

16. Subsequent event
On April 18, 2008, the following appropriation of retained earnings at February 29, 2008 was resolved by the Board of Directors:

   Thousands of 
  Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

Year-end cash dividends, ¥32.0 ($0.30) per share ..................................................  ¥3,050 $29,048

17. Related party transactions

Transactions of the Company with related parties for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, were as follows:

  Thousands of 

 Millions of yen  U.S. dollars 

 2008 2007 2008

ITOCHU Corporation—Average short-term deposit balance to
  ITOCHU Corporation under cash management program ......................................  ¥12,822

Tadashi Endo (corporate auditor and attorney)—Attorney’s fee ............................... ¥       31 29 $     295

Famima Credit Corporation (associated company):

 Receivable—long-term loans (included investments in and advances to
   unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies) ................................. 10,000 10,000 95,238

 Guarantee of fi nancial institution loan ................................................................. 3,994 4,475 38,038

ITOCHU Corporation guaranteed ¥3,168 million ($30,171 thousand) and ¥5,188 million of the above long-term loans as of February 29, 2008 

and February 28, 2007, respectively.
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18. Segment information
The Group operates in the following industries:

Convenience store business: Developing “FamilyMart” chain stores by franchise system and area franchise system

E-commerce business: Sales by Famiport Multimedia Kiosks and internet shopping, etc.

Other businesses: Leases, accounting services, fi nancial services, etc.

Information about industry segments, geographical segments and operating revenues from foreign customers of the Company and 

its subsidiaries for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, was as follows:

(1) Industry Segments

The industry segments of the Company and its subsidiaries for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, are summarized 

as follows:

a. Operating revenues and operating income 

   Millions of yen

   2008

 Convenience E-commerce Other  Eliminations/
 store business business businesses Corporate Consolidated

Operating revenues from outside the Group .....................  ¥260,576 ¥57,770 ¥1,093  ¥319,439

Intersegment operating revenues ......................................  183 3,729 1,065 ¥(4,977) 

 Total operating revenues ................................  260,759 61,499 2,158 (4,977) 319,439

Operating expenses .........................................................  225,719 60,418 1,992 96 288,225

Operating income  ............................................................  ¥  35,040 ¥  1,081 ¥   166 ¥(5,073) ¥  31,214

b. Total assets, depreciation, loss on impairment of long-lived assets and capital expenditures

   Millions of yen

   2008

 Convenience E-commerce Other  Eliminations/
 store business business businesses Corporate Consolidated

Total assets ......................................................................  ¥239,790 ¥6,119 ¥11,573 ¥93,789 ¥351,271

Depreciation .....................................................................  9,796 7 53  9,856

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets ...........................  1,965  1  1,966

Capital expenditures .........................................................  27,390 1 41  27,432

a. Operating revenues and operating income

   Thousands of U.S. dollars

   2008

 Convenience E-commerce Other  Eliminations/
 store business business businesses Corporate Consolidated

Operating revenues from outside the Group .....................  $2,481,676 $550,190 $10,410  $3,042,276

Intersegment operating revenues ......................................  1,743 35,515 10,142 $(47,400) 

 Total operating revenues ................................  2,483,419 585,705 20,552 (47,400) 3,042,276

Operating expenses .........................................................  2,149,705 575,410 18,971 914 2,745,000

Operating income .............................................................  $   333,714 $  10,295 $  1,581 $(48,314) $   297,276

b. Total assets, depreciation, loss on impairment of long-lived assets and capital expenditures

   Thousands of U.S. dollars

   2008

 Convenience E-commerce Other  Eliminations/
 store business business businesses Corporate Consolidated

Total assets ......................................................................  $2,283,714 $58,276 $110,219 $893,229 $3,345,438

Depreciation .....................................................................  93,295 67 505  93,867

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets ...........................  18,714  10  18,724

Capital expenditures .........................................................  260,857 10 390  261,257
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a. Operating revenues and operating income

   Millions of yen

   2007

 Convenience E-commerce Other  Eliminations/
 store business business businesses Corporate Consolidated

Operating revenues from outside the Group .....................  ¥241,325 ¥55,715 ¥   809  ¥297,849

Intersegment operating revenues ......................................  179 7,061 1,138 ¥(8,378)

 Total operating revenues ................................  241,504 62,776 1,947 (8,378) 297,849

Operating expenses .........................................................  207,804 62,294 1,816 (3,674) 268,240

Operating income  ............................................................  ¥  33,700 ¥     482 ¥   131 ¥(4,704) ¥  29,609

b. Total assets, depreciation, loss on impairment of long-lived assets and capital expenditures

   Millions of yen

   2007

 Convenience E-commerce Other  Eliminations/
 store business business businesses Corporate Consolidated

Total assets ......................................................................  ¥230,580 ¥6,506 ¥11,215 ¥66,955 ¥315,256

Depreciation .....................................................................  11,486 7  72  11,565

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets ...........................  1,434  3  1,437

Capital expenditures .........................................................  32,934 25 51  33,010

(2) Geographical Segments

The geographical segments of the Company and its subsidiaries for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, are summa-

rized as follows:

   Millions of yen

   2008

    Eliminations/
 Japan Asia Other area Corporate Consolidated

Operating revenues from outside the Group .....................  ¥268,442 ¥49,588 ¥ 1,409  ¥319,439

Interarea transfers .............................................................  609   ¥    (609) 

 Total operating revenues ................................  269,051 49,588 1,409 (609) 319,439

Operating expenses .........................................................  234,130 47,218 2,413 4,464 288,225

Operating income (loss) ....................................................  ¥  34,921 ¥  2,370 ¥(1,004) ¥ (5,073) ¥  31,214

Total assets ......................................................................  ¥203,150 ¥48,226 ¥ 1,638 ¥98,257 ¥351,271

   Thousands of U.S. dollars

   2008

    Eliminations/
 Japan Asia Other area Corporate Consolidated

Operating revenues from outside the Group .....................  $2,556,590 $472,267 $13,419  $3,042,276

Interarea transfers .............................................................  5,800   $   (5,800) 

 Total operating revenues ................................  2,562,390 472,267 13,419 (5,800) 3,042,276

Operating expenses .........................................................  2,229,810 449,696 22,981 42,513 2,745,000

Operating income (loss) ....................................................  $   332,580 $  22,571 $ (9,562) $ (48,313) $   297,276

Total assets ......................................................................  $1,934,762 $459,295 $15,600 $935,781 $3,345,438

   Millions of yen

   2007

    Eliminations/
 Japan Asia Other area Corporate Consolidated

Operating revenues from outside the Group .....................  ¥249,958 ¥47,233 ¥   658  ¥297,849

Interarea transfers .............................................................  540 47  ¥    (587)

 Total operating revenues ................................  250,498 47,280 658 (587) 297,849

Operating expenses .........................................................  217,631 45,148   1,344 4,117 268,240

Operating income (loss) ....................................................  ¥  32,867 ¥  2,132 ¥  (686) ¥ (4,704) ¥  29,609

Total assets ......................................................................  ¥198,593  ¥43,260 ¥2,089 ¥71,314 ¥315,256

(3) Operating Revenues from Foreign Customers

Operating revenues from foreign customers for the years ended February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007, amounted to ¥51,428 million 

($489,790 thousand) and ¥48,404 million, respectively.
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The “FamilyMart Feel” to me 

means giving that little bit 

more consideration to the 

customer — looking at things 

from our customers’ perspec-

tive, and satisfying their needs 

one by one.

I work on the further develop-

ment of our Three-Star Pasta 

se r ies ,  which  has  ear ned 

FamilyMart a reputation for 

excellent pasta dishes, uniquely 

for a convenience store. 

In line with our action guide-

line — “exceeding customers’ 

expectations” — I am princi-

pally concerned with ensuring 

that landowners, franchisees, 

and all other business partners 

are fully satisfi ed. 

Fam i l y M ar t  i s  e x p an d i n g 

overseas. I warmly welcome 

visitors to Japan, including area 

franchise candidates, business 

partners and clients. In this way, 

I hope to win new FamilyMart 

fans worldwide, one person at 

a time.

Store staff Product planning Store development Overseas operations
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Our measures to strengthen the “FamilyMart Feel”
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Store Operation

To provide a more enjoyable shopping experi-

ence, we prioritize our core commitments.

Our aim for our stores: Hospitality in everything we do

Thorough attention to service, quality and cleanliness 

(SQ&C) is the key to creating stores that are popular with 

our customers. To ensure our stores always off er products 

and services true to the FamilyMart name and commit-

ment to hospitality, we focus fi rst and foremost on SQ&C, 

the basis of all we do.

 By realizing the concept of the “FamilyMart Feel” at 

each of our stores, we aim for a higher level of customer 

satisfaction, ensuring a welcome that makes people feel 

at home at all our stores.

Service

Giving the customer 

prompt, friendly and 

caring attention

Store staff  qualifi ca-

tion system: encourag-

ing staff  to pass the 

primary grade 

Using the “FamilyMart Feel” 
concept to diff erentiate 
ourselves from our rivals

Placing orders based 

on more accurate 

demand forecasts, 

by following the 

recommendations of 

the Store System User 

Committee

Four major cleanliness 

improvements

• Storefronts

• Counter areas

• Toilets

• Floors

Quality

A worry-free place to do 

your shopping, with the 

products and lineups 

you want, when you 

want them

Cleanliness

Cleaning and sanita-

tion management that 

reaches every corner

A basis for winning 
the support of our 
customers

Hospitality

Thorough attention to SQ&C

Being the store of choice for our customers

The Basics of Retailing: Thorough Attention to SQ&C
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Advanced grade

Intermediate grade

Primary grade

Staff trainer 

Qualification Tasks

Store staff qualification system

Able to handle emergency situations 
in name of store manager

Able to give training to other staff

Able to handle low-frequency, high-difficulty 
operations

Able to perform simple, high-frequency 
operations (appearance is most important)

SST

Recruitment, 
interview,

employment,
training

Store staff
qualification 

system: 
appraisal, pay raise 

and promotion

Raise motivation Pooling of 
information

Initiatives for Further Growth

We are steadily expanding our “FamilyMart Feel” 

activities from store to store. We are already taking a 

range of measures to ensure maximum hospitality in 

each of our stores, and creating paradigms for adop-

tion by all our franchisees using our intranet. 

Creating the “FamilyMart Feel”
in our stores

Store staff are key to successful store management. We 

ensure the highest standards through the store Staff  Total 

(SST) system, a proprietary human resources development 

system created by FamilyMart.

 In March 2008 we made changes to our store staff  

qualifi cation system to make it more eff ective in practice. 

As of the end of February 2008, of the approximately 

100,000 personnel working at FamilyMart stores around 

Japan, approximately 50,000 have already passed our 

primary grade. Data show the higher the number of staff  

at our stores who have this qualification, the higher are 

the service levels and the more satisfi ed are our custom-

ers. In fi scal 2008, we aim to have all our store staff  acquire 

our primary grade qualifi cation, to create fi rmer underpin-

nings for our overall store operation.

We aim to improve service standards by encour-

aging staff  to pass our in-house qualifi cations.

Training of Store Staff 

Under our SQ&C concept, raising the accuracy of ordering 

is essential to improving product line-ups. Through the 

Store System User Committee launched in fiscal 2007, 

we have been tackling various issues in ordering on an 

individual store basis, aiming to make the most eff ective 

use of our new store management system.

 To realize our goal of supplying the products and 

lineups customers want, when they want them, beginning 

with fiscal 2008 we are working on the development of an 

order decision system more closely linked to the number 

of customer visits and an ordering system that utilizes a 

single set of standards.

We aim to raise the accuracy of ordering to cre-

ate an optimal merchandise mix.

Increased Accuracy of Ordering

Store Staff  Total (SST) System

SQ&C training vehicle

The SQ&C training vehicle is used for 

franchise stores in remote locations. It 

is able to accommodate eight trainees 

at a time, and serves approximately 

500 stores each year.

Measures

■ Supporting the elderly and customers with young children 

by carrying their baskets. 

■ The Best Customer Service Contest, in which customers 

vote on which staff  member in a store is the most helpful. 

The aim is to improve dialog with the customer, motivate 

store staff  and ensure a better customer welcome.

■ To make customers feel welcome, staff  

decorate their stores with fl owers.
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Products

 Generation

Our products are tailored to the needs both of our 

traditional core customers — young men in their 20s and 

30s — and of working women and members of the baby-

boom generation.

■ Price

As customer preferences diversify, our aim is to achieve 

a good balance of products at a wide range of prices, 

from high-quality, low-cost items to high value-added 

products.

Three Marketing Strategies

We are developing new products based on three 

marketing approaches under the More Changes! 

concept.

■ Region

We are developing products tailored to local markets. In 

fi scal 2007, such items accounted for approximately 47% 

of our sales of priority ready-to-eat foods (rice balls, sushi, 

boxed lunches, delicatessen items and cooked noodles).

Product development true to the FamilyMart name

Price

Generation

Region

Meetings the needs of 
all generations

Women in their 20s

Baby-boomers

Lineups with a wide 
range of pricing

Aff ordable

High value-added

Product development 
with local roots

Grown and eaten locally

Local taste and fl avor
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Famima Wonder Corners

We  are  overhauling all 

standardized displays of 

daily products in our stores 

in Japan. Franchisees and 

supervisors are putting forward ideas for displays that 

surprise and delight customers, and help them feel 

relaxed. We are creating retail spaces that reinvent the 

convenience store concept.

Famima Fresh Corners 

At our Famima Fresh corners, 

we offer fresh foods includ-

ing vegetables, fruit, meat,  

fish and prepared-food kits 

enabling customers to quickly create their own meals. At 

the end of February 2008, approximately 1,000 stores had 

introduced this feature.

Six main strategies for fi scal 2008.

1.  Strategy for Priority Categories

FamilyMart is working to further widen its lead in its 

traditional strengths such as pasta, fast food and desserts 

to achieve complete dominance.

Pasta Fast food Desserts

Working together to build up our strengths

Product development

Advertising

Sales promotion

Creating better retail 
spaces

Six Strategies

2.  Cross-Category Brand Strategy

We are creating new brands with universal values such as 

environment-friendliness and health promotion — going 

beyond conventional category boundaries.

3.  Five-Band Temperature Strategy

Using a fi ve-band temperature-zone spectrum from frozen 

to piping hot, we are using new ingredients and off ering 

customers new dining and taste experiences.

4.  Regional Strategy

We are developing closer local links in product develop-

ment, and overhauling our food procurement systems in 

Japan and overseas, and realizing better product develop-

ment and promotion through global networks.

5.  Online Sales Strategy

We plan to create new ways of inducing customers to 

harness the limitless possibilities of Internet shopping.

6.  Corporate Social Responsibility Strategy

We participate in the Bellmark campaign as part of our 

society contribution policy. 

We aim to revitalize the shelves at existing 

stores by introducing new product line-ups.

Better Lineups in Individual Stores

Oyaji Project

Priority Category

Employees of FamilyMart and its business partners 

set up the Oyaji Project in fiscal 2003 (oyaji is an 

affectionate term used for middle-aged men). 

The project was aimed at developing products for 

middle-aged male customers. From fiscal 2007 we 

have operated the project using two teams, one 

consisting of members in their 40s and 50s and one 

with members in their late 50s and early 60s. These 

teams focus on coming up with products closely 

tailored to the needs of these age groups.

  Kodawari Saika Gozen 

boxed meal developed by 

the Babyboomers team  

¥690(See page 20 for more information)

Initiatives for Further Growth
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We are systematically creating a framework 

for a high-quality store network. 

Store Opening Strategy

FamilyMart manages its store-opening program under a 

model in which the management of operations is divided 

into Districts (regional organizations under the direct 

control of top management). The Store Development 

Division and the Districts work together to create a high-

quality store network.

 In July 2006, we completed extension of our 

network to all 47 prefectures of Japan. Now we are 

working to strengthen our dominance in the three major 

metropolises of Tokyo, Osaka, and Nagoya, as well as 

in major provincial cities. In fiscal 2008, we established 

a Metropolitan-Area Development Department within 

the Store Development Division. We are stepping up 

information-gathering activities in the Tokyo area, 

encouraging major companies to become franchisees and 

off ering support at the District level.

 Also essential for attracting store managers with 

real commitment is improvement of the franchising 

Consolidating Our Network

Consolidating our network of stores and exploring new possibilities

Development structure

Laying the groundwork for 

store-openings in locations 

with high revenue potential.

Building a high-quality store network

Franchising system

A better system for ensuring 

that store managers have real 

commitment

 • Establishment of Metropolitan-

Area Development Department

 • Priority personnel deployment 

to three major metropolises, 

and major provincial cities 

 • Inspections of all premises 

by the New Store Screening 

Department

 • “Scrap & Build” approach

 • Designing purpose-specifi c 

contracts (See page 69 for 

more information)

 • Multiple-store promotion 

system 

 • Using the newly indepen-

dent franchisee support 

system

 • Encouraging corporate 

franchising

system. To promote multiple-store operation, we give 

franchisees under 1FC contracts incentive payments 

based on performance of their stores other than the fi rst 

one (Multiple-store promotion system). We have also 

developed franchising contracts tailored to corporate 

partners.

*Multiple-store promotion system: Franchisees must meet certain 

screening standards established by FamilyMart to apply the system. 
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For FamilyMart, new markets means locations tradition-

ally neglected by convenience store operators. To 

enhance customer convenience, we are aggressively 

developing such areas. Up to now, we have concentrated 

on service areas alongside expressways and hotels for 

opening new outlets, using store designs and product 

lineups tailored to local conditions to appeal to as many 

customers as possible.

In July 2007, we launched joint development of the 

TOMONY store format for shopping areas inside station 

buildings operated by Seibu Railway in the Tokyo area. As 

of the end of February 2008, we had opened fi ve stores 

under the project, and plan to steadily convert other 

existing station retail outlets to the TOMONY format.

 We are opening multi-function stores jointly with 

video rental company TSUTAYA. As both companies 

have a youth-centered customer base, this arrangement 

enables mutual utilization of the other partner’s core 

customer base.

 This is an example of our pursuit of new business 

opportunities through partnerships with players in other 

sectors.

Developing New Markets

Building a presence in a wider range of markets.

Exploring new possibilities.

Airports Railway stations Expressways

Offi  ce buildings Shopping facilities Hotels

Universities Hospitals Local government offi  ces

Making daily shopping fun: 

Famima!!

Convenience stores in special facilities such as large 

offi  ce buildings need to off er not only convenience 

but also an enjoyable experience for customers, who 

will tend to shop there day after day.

 Our flexibly designed Famima!! stores are 

intended to meet these needs. As of the end of 

February 2008, 14 of these new-concept stores had 

been opened.

 Thanks to designs that harmonize with the 

building, Famima!! stores provide customers with a 

space where they can shop while feeling totally at 

ease.

 We differentiate these outlets from conven-

tional convenience stores by the use of innovative 

product lineups such as imported stationery and 

miscellaneous goods, as well as gourmet soups and 

sandwiches.

Markets Factories Underground shopping centers

Partnerships in Other Business Sectors

Store design for more relaxed shopping

Eat-in corners

TOMONY Multi-function store

Innovative product lineups

Initiatives for Further Growth
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Multimedia terminals

Easy to operate, Famiport Multimedia Terminals can be used by 

customers to order products and services, as well as for ticket 

printouts. FamilyMart has made a name for itself as the first 

convenience store operator to off er services such as domestic 

help and rental property searches. We plan to develop a much 

wider range of services available at Famiport 

Multimedia Terminals in the future. 

Point card system

In November 2007, FamilyMart began issuing the Famima T 

Card, which combines the benefits of the Famima Card with 

those of the T Card, including cardholder-only (both cards) 

discounts. There is no enrolment or annual fee for this card, 

which is designed to increase footfall at our stores.

(As of end of February 29, 2008, cardholders totaled 2.04 million, including Famima 

Card holders and holders of cards without credit 

functions)

Services

Installation of ATM terminals continues.

(There were 5,500 ATMs in our stores as of the 

end of February 29, 2008, 

excluding area franchisers.)

E-net

ATM services

In the future, stores in our sector will be expected to off er customers greater convenience through both merchandise 

sales and service provision — acting as part of the local social infrastructure. To meet these needs, we are outpacing 

our rivals in introducing new store management system and building alliances with other companies. Using these 

infrastructure advantages, we are raising convenience levels and boosting the number of customer visits and sales at 

our stores.

Customers can shop at FamilyMart from 

the comfort of their own homes with our 

online shopping services. They may re-

quest home delivery or pick up the goods 

at a specified 

store, in which 

case there are 

no handling 

charges. 

famima.com. Co., Ltd.

Internet shopping

This is a shopping catalog available free of 

charge at our stores. 

Famima.com MAGAZINE

Catalog shopping

Famiport Multimedia Terminals

Famima T Card (credit card type/non-credit-card type)

E-money settlements

iD and Edy can be used for electronic settlements at all of our 

stores. Suica is accepted at some 2,600 stores in the Tokyo area 

and the Sendai and Niigata areas.

iD Edy Suica

iD: An electronic settlement service using NTT DoCoMo’s 

mobile phones as credit cards.

Edy: A prepaid e-money system operated by Bitwallet

Suica: A prepaid e-money system operated by JR East

Joint point program

In November 2007, we joined the T-POINT program of the Culture 

Convenience Club Group, and launched our T-POINT service, 

whereby customers who make purchases at FamilyMart can ac-

cumulate points by showing their T Card. The points can then be 

used at stores and sales outlets of other member organizations. 

One consumer in fi ve in Japan has a T Card, and this alliance is 

intended to draw more of them into our stores.

(As of the end of February 29, 2008, 43 companies, represent-

ing 62 brands, had joined the T-POINT alliance. Cardholders 

totaled 26.51 million out of the total Japanese population of 

127.76 million.)

T-POINT service

©SOTSU • SUNRISE
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Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Japan

Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

The Pan-Pacifi c Plan

South Korea

3,787 stores

United States

11 stores

Japan

7,187 stores

Taiwan

2,247 stores

Thailand

507 stores

Shanghai

Guangzhou

Suzhou

11 stores

7 stores

118 stores

Total of stores in Japan and abroad:

13,875 stores

Fiscal 2008 marked the 15th anniver-

sary of the founding of this company, 

which has become the number one 

convenience store chain in terms of total 

outlets in southern Kyushu (Kagoshima 

and Miyazaki prefectures). It has been 

active from the start in developing food 

products using local farm produce, as 

well as incorporating area characteristics 

into store development strategies. For 

example, it is known for imaginative 

initiatives, including bread freshly baked 

in the store and sales of ramen from 

leading local noodle stores.

As of February 29, 2008

Established 1987 Established 1993 Established 2006

As of the end of February 2008, the FamilyMart Group operated a combined total of 13,875 stores in Japan and 

its overseas markets of Taiwan, South Korea, Thailand, China, and the United States. During fiscal 2008, we are 

aggressively expanding our store network in pursuit of our goal of establishing a global network of 20,000 stores.

 Our area franchisers in Japan and overseas are acting as powerful partners in this store network expansion 

initiative, and we look forward to continuing to work hand-in-hand with them.

This is an original Okinawa specialty featuring 

pork and eggs, served with rice. This product is 

50% larger than an ordinary rice ball.

Launched in fi scal 2007, Mont Blanc cakes are 

extremely popular items that use the local suki 

chestnut.

This is an original product from Hokkaido: “White 

chocolate roll – A Gift from the North.”

Hokkaido FamilyMart aims to quickly 

achieve a substantial market presence 

centered on Sapporo, by opening high-

quality stores. In a difficult competitive 

environment, it is focusing aggressively 

on product differentiation — using fast 

food, handmade desserts and MUJI brand 

items — to stay ahead of rival chains. 

Future plans envisage further develop-

ment of original Hokkaido products. 

This area franchiser is the largest conve-

nience store chain in Okinawa Prefecture. 

The company has earned a high level of 

public trust through local community 

activities carried out at the individual 

store level — following the Okinawan 

tradition of yui, or building harmonious 

relationships between people through 

mutual assistance — and its stores enjoy 

excellent sales, and it is aiming to boost 

sales figures still further through the 

development of products using local 

ingredients.

Initiatives for Further Growth
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Taiwan

Siam FamilyMart opened its first store 

in 1993, and currently operates stores 

mainly in Bangkok, Pattaya, and Phuket. 

To differentiate the chain, the manage-

ment is focusing on raising the level of 

SQ&C and promoting fast-food such as 

grilled sausages, hamburgers and oden 

(Japanese-style stewed hodgepodge).

South Korea Thailand

Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. BOKWANG FAMILYMART CO., LTD. Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Established 1988 Established 1990 Established 1992

This dish is par t o f our chi l led noodle l ine 

named af ter f amous shops. These noodle 

dishes, de veloped through the f i r s t - e ver 

collaboration between a convenience store 

chain and f amous no o dle shop s , are ver y 

popular in Taiwan. 

This is a Korean-style sushi roll. We have sold 

more than 30 million of this popular fast-food 

item.

We offer oden, which is originally a Japanese 

stew hodgepodge with two types of broth – 

the original fl avor and a Tom Yam Kung variety 

adapted to local tastes.

This product is part of our railway boxed lunch 

line. These boxed lunches feature the dark 

meat of chicken thighs and legs prepared 

with local spices and fl avorings.

This is unique style of bibimbap, found only 

at FamilyMarts in Korea – with vegetables and 

meat, egg and other toppings. 

These are small desser ts. Ours are chilled, 

unlike those served by street vendors.

At the end of February 2008, this area 

franchiser had 3,787 stores, position-

ing it among South Korea’s leading 

convenience store operators. It plans a 

net increase of 400 stores in fi scal 2008. 

BOKWANG FAMILYMART is developing 

dishes using organically grown produce, 

and introducing higher-end food items 

such as rice balls made with the finest 

quality rice and nori (dried seaweed), to 

build up a diff erentiated range of original 

products and service menus.

Taiwan FamilyMart opened its fi rst store 

in 1988. By December 2006 the company 

had built up a chain of 2,000 stores all 

over the island, and in December 2007 

it completed the acquisition of business 

rights for some 160 stores from Nikomart 

of Taiwan. It is now the number two con-

venience store chain operator in Taiwan. 

To differentiate itself in an extremely 

competitive business environment, the 

company has actively introduced ready-

to-eat foods and many other products 

and services based on FamilyMart’s 

extensive know-how in Japan.
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China

Shanghai FamilyMart Co., Ltd. Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Established 2004

Established 2006

Established 2007

W e  in t r o du c e d  a  c h e w y  k in d  o f  b r e a d 

previously unknown in the Chinese market, 

developed through technical cooperation 

with Japan. This product is now a big hit in 

Shanghai.

“Om Rice” – curry-fl avored fried rice wrapped 

in an omelet – is one of the f astest-sell ing 

items at the Shanghai FamilyMart.

This oden (a hot stew hodgepodge) features curry-flavored balls made of fish 

paste, and is sold in unique containers specially designed to keep the stew hot. 

This item is an all-time local favorite.

United States

Since becoming the first Japanese 

convenience store chain to open a 

store in the United States in 2005, this 

company has developed its business 

under the Famima!! brand, featuring new 

standards of product quality, service and 

hospitality. Popular main products are 

panini grilled in-store, fast-food items, 

sushi, pasta and desserts.

FAMIMA CORPORATION

Established 2004

Panini is the leading product of the Famima!! 

brand. What makes this product so popular 

is that we take the time to grill it right in the 

store.

A standard Famima!! i tem is our spaghetti 

bolognese. This product has proven popular 

since the opening of our very fi rst store. 

Shanghai  Fami ly M ar t  opened i t s 

first store in 2004. In January 2007 

Guangzhou FamilyMart became the 

f i rst  Japanese convenience store 

chain to open an outlet in Guangdong 

Province. In September 2007, the first 

store in Suzhou (a major city in Jiangsu 

Province) opened its doors, and further 

business expansion is planned within 

China. Differentiation will be led by 

products such as rice balls, oden, lunch 

boxes, bread and so on, as well as hearty 

service. 

Initiatives for Further Growth
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Fact Sheets

(Customers)(¥ thousand) (%)
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Total stores New stores Total stores

471

425

856
0.9

Average Daily Sales Number of Customers Growth Rate of Average Daily Sales 
of Existing Stores

 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2 (Est.)

 YoY YoY YoY YoY
 difference difference difference difference

 
Average daily 

  Total stores  468 (5) 464 (4) 471 7 490 19

 sales  Existing stores  471 (3) 466 (5) 473 7 492 19
 (thousands of yen)

 New stores  418 (42) 406 (12) 425 19 445 20

 Number of 
 Total stores  835 1 831 (4) 856 25 889 33

 customers
 Existing stores  838 4 834 (4) 858 24 893 35

 Spend per  Total stores  561 (6) 558 (3) 551 (7) 551 —

 customer (yen) Existing stores  562 (6) 559 (3) 551 (8) 551 —

  Growth rate of average

 daily sales of existing stores (%)  
(1.6) (2.8) (1.4) 0.2 0.9 2.3 2.5 1.6

 Average inventory (thousands of yen)  5,374 51 5,460 86 5,505 45 5,500 (5)

 Turnover of goods (times)  30.5 (0.8) 30.3 (0.2) 30.6 0.3 30.9 0.3

Business Performance (non-consolidated)

Business Performance 

Bill Settlement Service

  06/2 07/2 08/2

  YoY (%) YoY (%) YoY (%)

 Transaction volume (millions of yen)   906,192 15.6 1,048,380 15.7 1,198,266 14.3

 Number of Transactions (thousand)   102,314 13.5 114,641 12.0 131,061 14.3

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the 

performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the 

performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the 

performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the performance results of the TOMONY stores.
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  06/2 07/2 08/2

 YoY (%) Share (%) YoY (%) Share (%) YoY (%) Share (%)

      Fast food 34,282 30.1 3.3 38,502 12.3 3.6 41,286 7.2 3.7

      Daily food 336,902 3.5 32.7 346,725 2.9 32.4 366,960 5.8 32.7

      Processed food 321,274 0.4 31.1 327,043 1.8 30.6 342,502 4.7 30.5

         Liquor (License goods) 61,028 0.5 5.9 60,842 (0.3) 5.7 63,259 4.0 5.6

 Food sub-total 692,458 3.1 67.1 712,270 2.9 66.6 750,748 5.4 66.9

 Non-food 261,914 2.8 25.4 276,656 5.6 25.9 289,239 4.5 25.8

         Cigarettes (License goods) 149,866 7.0 14.5 166,315 11.0 15.6 180,933 8.8 16.1

 Services 34,139 (13.2) 3.3 26,935 (21.1) 2.5 27,401 1.7 2.4

 E-commerce 43,225 33.4 4.2 52,961 22.5 5.0 54,450 2.8 4.9

 Total 1,031,736 3.3 100.0 1,068,822 3.6 100.0 1,121,838 5.0 100.0

Breakdown of Sales by Product Category

 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2 (Est.)

 YoY YoY YoY YoY
 difference difference difference difference

      Fast food 49.75 0.91 50.52 0.77 50.52 —  

      Daily food 34.08 0.43 34.65 0.57 34.93 0.28  

      Processed food 33.74 0.71 34.17 0.43 34.71 0.54  

         Liquor (License goods) 22.78 0.87 22.98 0.20 23.25 0.27  

  Food sub-total 34.70 0.75 35.29 0.59 35.69 0.40  

  Non-food 19.53 (0.19) 19.05 (0.48) 18.63 (0.42)  

         Cigarettes (License goods) 10.48 0.02 10.56 0.08 10.49 (0.07)  

 Services 11.23 1.30 13.59 2.36 13.16 (0.43)  

 E-commerce 3.66 (0.15) 3.26 (0.40) 3.42 0.16  

 Total 28.77 0.38 28.95 0.18 29.18 0.23 29.26 0.08

Gross Profi t Ratio

(Millions of yen)

(%)

The main description of each merchandise category as follows:

Fast food: Fried chickens, steamed meat buns, oden, french fries and croquettes etc. made and sold over the counter

Daily food: Lunch boxes, noodles, sandwiches, delicatessen, desserts etc.

Processed food: Beverages, alcoholic beverages, instant noodles, confectionery, seasonings etc.

Non-food: Magazines, daily goods, cigarettes etc.

Services: Copy service, express service etc.

E-commerce: Sales by Famiport Multimedia Terminal and internet shopping

Products (non-consolidated)

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the performance results of the TOMONY stores.
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Number of Openings and Closures (non-consolidated)
 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2 (Est.)

 Openings Closures Net Increase Openings Closures Net Increase Openings Closures Net Increase Openings Closures Net Increase

 FamilyMart 606 316 290 586 369 217 515 330 185 550 350 200

 TOMONY       5 — 5

 Total 606 316 290 586 369 217 520 330 190 550 350 200

330

515

6,691

496

6,688

13,875

38.9

54.2

6.9

(%)
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Company-owned stores
Type 1
Type 2

04/2 05/2 06/2 07/2 08/2
Overseas area franchising stores
Domestic area franchising stores
FamilyMart stores

Openings Closures

Number of Stores Number of Openings and Closures Breakdown of Contract Type

Stores

Number of Stores
 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2 (Est.)*

  YoY  YoY  YoY  YoY
 Number of stores difference Number of stores difference Number of stores difference Number of stores difference

 Company-owned stores 342 56 358 16 460 102 450 (10)

      Type 1 3,343 282 3,509 166 3,627 118

      (TOMONY)     5 5

      Type 2 2,599 (48) 2,634 35 2,604 (30)

 Franchised stores 5,942 234 6,143 201 6,231 88 6,441 210

 FamilyMart stores 6,284 290 6,501 217 6,691 190 6,891 200

      Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 181 19 194 13 200 6

      Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 269 1 266 (3) 273 7

      Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd.   13 13 23 10

 Domestic area franchising stores 450 20 473 23 496 23 521 25

 Domestic chain stores 6,734 310 6,974 240 7,187 213 7,412 225

      Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 1,869 168 2,023 154 2,247 224 2,359 112

      BOKWANG FAMILYMART CO., LTD. 3,209 392 3,471 262 3,787 316 4,187 400

      Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 536 27 538 2 507 (31) 571 64

      Shanghai FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 101 51 102 1 118 16 151 33

      FAMIMA CORPORATION 3 3 12 9 11 (1) 13 2

      Guangzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd.   2 2 11 9 29 18

      Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd.     7 7 18 11

 Overseas area franchising stores 5,718 641 6,148 430 6,688 540 7,328 640

 Total area franchising stores 6,168 661 6,621 453 7,184 563 7,849 665

 Total chain stores 12,452 951 13,122 670 13,875 753 14,740 865

*The fi gures for 09/2 do not include the TOMONY stores.

 (Non-consolidated)  (Non-consolidated)

*The fi gures above do not refl ect the 

performance results of the TOMONY 

stores.
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(As of February 29, 2008)

Iwate

95

Miyagi

195

Fukushima

127

Ibaraki

142

Tokyo

1,050

Chiba

279

Aomori

23

Akita

28

Yamagata

88

Tochigi

111

Niigata

35

Gunma

90

Saitama

372

Kanagawa

492

Toyama

65

Nagano

29

Yamanashi

66

Shizuoka

200

Ishikawa

69

Fukui

88

Shiga

106

Gifu

100

Aichi

446

Total 13,875 stores

Mie

121

Kyoto

137

Hyogo

284

Osaka

648

Nara

48

Wakayama

66

Tottori

25

Okayama

79

Kagawa

68

Tokushima

40

Shimane

24

Hiroshima

146

Ehime

65

Kochi

23

Yamaguchi

18

Fukuoka

260

Oita

67

Miyazaki

76

Kagoshima

197

Nagasaki

131

Saga

49

Kumamoto

96

Okinawa

200

U.S.A.

11

FamilyMart stores

Area franchising stores
Hokkaido

23
China

136
South Korea

3,787
Taiwan

2,247
Thailand

507

Number of Stores by Region

Contract type

Contract period

Required at contract 
date

Land/building

Interior facility construction 
expense

10 years from store opening

¥3,075,000 at contract date (including ¥75,000 consumption tax)

1FC-A  1FC-B 1FC-C 2FC-N

Types of FamilyMart Franchising Contracts

Sales fi xtures 
Information devices

(In principle, FamilyMart funds necessary expenses)

Provided by FamilyMart Provided by FamilyMart

Provided by FamilyMart

Provided by FamilyMart

Staff  hiring 
Application for approval

About ¥500,000
(In the case of 2FC-N contracts, franchisees are required to provide funds for 2 to 3 months’ living expenses.)

Funds

Franchise commission

Minimum operating revenue guaranteed (for stores open 24 hrs/day)

Incentive for opening 24 hrs/day

Rent

Utilities

Provided by FamilyMart Provided by FamilyMart

Note 2

 Affi  liation fee ¥525,000

 Store preparation commission ¥1,050,000

 Initial stocking fee*  ¥1,500,000

*  Including cash for making change and a portion of 

merchandise procurement costs

FamilyMart funds part of 
expense

48%~65% of gross margin*48% of gross margin*38% of gross margin*35% of gross margin*

¥20 million per year

¥1.2 million per year

Note 1

Notes: 1. In the case of rental store space, the franchisee shall pay the rent, a leasehold deposit, and guarantee money.

 2. In the case of 2FC-N contracts, the franchisee shall pay up to ¥3.6 million for utilities.

 3.     = Provided by franchisee.

* Net sales less cost of sales

(Contract details diff er according to area franchisers)
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Non-Consolidated (Millions of yen)

 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2 (Est.)

 YoY (%) YoY (%) YoY (%) YoY (%)

 Leasehold deposits 14,464 20.5 15,180 4.9 14,958 (1.5) 14,073 (5.9)

       New stores 4,054 13.1 5,252 29.6 3,643 (30.6) 3,605 (1.0)

       Existing stores 1,311 (24.6) 1,581 20.6 1,750 10.7 1,889 7.9

 For stores 5,365 0.8 6,833 27.4 5,393 (21.1) 5,494 1.9

       Head office investment 33 (81.2) 68 103.5 175 159.2 — —

       System investment 6,138 77.2 5,285 (13.9) 2,101 (60.2) 5,243 149.5

 For head office 6,171 69.5 5,353 (13.3) 2,276 (57.5) 5,243 130.4

 Total capital expenditure 26,000 24.0 27,366 5.3 22,627 (17.3) 24,810 9.6

 Depreciation and amortization expense 8,191 (12.3) 8,044 (1.8) 6,043 (24.9) 6,470 7.1

 Lease   20,292  6,508  5,543 

Consolidated (Millions of yen)

 06/2 07/2 08/2 09/2 (Est.)

 YoY (%) YoY (%) YoY (%) YoY (%)

 Total capital expenditure 29,491 10.8 33,010 11.9 27,504 (16.7) 29,820 8.4

 Depreciation and amortization expense 11,311 (5.4) 11,565 2.2 9,856 (14.8) 10,874 10.3

 07/2 08/2 

 Operating revenues Operating income Net income Operating revenues Operating income Net income

 Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 28,565 2,900 2,253 29,253 2,994 2,270

 Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 18,715 (703) (1,910) 20,335 (530) (740)

 FAMIMA CORPORATION 658 (687) (713) 1,409 (939) (1,548)

 famima.com Co., Ltd. 62,776 482 451 61,499 1,081 896

The Main Consolidated Subsidiaries (Millions of yen)

 07/2 08/2

 Net income Net income

 Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 240 348

 Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 242 165

 Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (128) (44)

 BOKWANG FAMILYMART CO., LTD. 3,554 4,235

 Famima Credit Corporation (662) 107

The Main Associated Companies Accounted 
for by the Equity Method (Millions of yen)

Consolidated Subsidiaries

Capital Expenditure
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LAWSON

FamilyMart

Circle K Sunkus

Seven-Eleven Japan

LAWSON

FamilyMart

Circle K Sunkus

Seven-Eleven Japan

LAWSON

FamilyMart

Circle K Sunkus

Seven-Eleven Japan

Total Store Sales Number of Stores Growth Rate of Average Daily Sales of 
Existing Stores

Aggregate Figures for All Convenience Stores in Japan
04/3 05/3 06/3 07/3 08/3

Total sales 
(billions of yen)

7,133 7,297 7,372 7,421 7,516

Number of stores 37,923 38,854 39,820 40,342 40,433

Total Store Sales (non-consolidated) (Millions of yen)

04/2 05/2 06/2 07/2 08/2

FamilyMart 954,445 998,491 1,031,736 1,068,822 1,121,838

Seven-Eleven Japan 2,343,177 2,440,853 2,498,754 2,533,534 2,574,306

LAWSON 1,285,018 1,329,077 1,360,495 1,377,842 1,402,786

Circle K Sunkus 883,894 907,407 898,741 872,844 860,041

Number of Stores at Year-end
(only in Japan, includes stores under area franchisers)

04/2 05/2 06/2 07/2 08/2

FamilyMart 6,199 6,424 6,734 6,974 7,187

Seven-Eleven Japan 10,303 10,826 11,310 11,735 12,034

LAWSON 7,821 8,077 8,366 8,564 8,587

Circle K Sunkus 6,152 6,339 6,372 6,336 6,139

Growth Rate of Average Daily Sales of Existing Stores
(non-consolidated) (%)

04/2 05/2 06/2 07/2 08/2

FamilyMart (2.9) 1.2 (1.6) (1.4) 0.9

Seven-Eleven Japan (0.6) (0.7) (1.6) (1.9) (1.5)

LAWSON (2.5) (0.3) (2.5) (1.8) (0.8)

Circle K Sunkus (4.5) (0.9) (3.3) (3.3) (1.8)

Principal Indicators of Convenience Store Industry

Note:  Circle K Sunkus was established through a merger of Circle K and Sunkus in September 2004. All fi gures prior to the year ended February 29, 2004 are the simple sum of the two founding 
companies.

Sources: Retail statistical yearbook, Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry and Documents released by Company.

 (Non-consolidated)

(Only in Japan, includes stores under area franchisers) (Non-consolidated)

Fact Sheets
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1972 Sept. The Planning Offi  ce of The Seiyu Stores, Ltd., sets up a Small 

Store Section.

1973 Sept. The first convenience store opens on a trial basis in Sayama, 

Saitama Prefecture.

1978 Mar.  The Seiyu Stores establishes FamilyMart Department; four 

stores operating.

1981 Sept. The Seiyu Stores establishes FamilyMart Co., Ltd., and 

transfers business and property; 89 stores operating.

1987 Oct.  FamilyMar t  and RYUBO CO. ,  LTD. ,  in  Naha,  Ok inawa 

Prefecture, jointly establish Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

 Dec. The Tokyo Stock Exchange lists FamilyMart stocks on the

 Second Section.

1988 Aug. FamilyMart and partner companies in Taiwan jointly establish 

Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

1989 Aug. The Tokyo Stock Exchange lists FamilyMart stocks on the First 

Section.

1990 July Fa m i l y M a r t  c o n c l u d e s  a  c o n t r a c t  w i t h  B O K WA N G 

FAMILYMART CO., LTD., of Seoul, South Korea, for the transfer 

of convenience store operational know-how and the use of 

the FamilyMart service logo under license; under this contract, 

franchising operations for FamilyMart stores in South Korea 

commence.

1992 Sept. FamilyMart jointly establishes Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. with 

Robinson Department Store Public Co., Ltd.; Saha Pathanapibul 

Public Co., Ltd.; and ITOCHU (THAILAND) LTD.

1993 Apr. FamilyMart and Homboshoten Co., Ltd., in Kagoshima jointly 

establish Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

1998 Feb. The ITOCHU Group buys the stock of FamilyMart from The 

Seiyu, Ltd., and other companies, becoming the largest 

shareholder.

1999 Mar. All offi  ces and stores of FamilyMart receive blanket certifi cation 

under ISO 14001, the international standard for environmental 

management systems.

 Sept. FamilyMart and 25 other companies (including 4 convenience 

store chains and 10 fi nancial institutions) jointly establish E-net 

Co., Ltd., to install ATM machines in stores.

2000 May To promote electronic commerce, FamilyMart and top com-

panies in each industry—including ITOCHU Corporation, NTT 

DATA Corporation, and Toyota Motor Corporation—jointly 

establish famima.com Co., Ltd.

 Oct. FamilyMart experimentally introduces Famiport Multimedia 

Terminals in some stores (full-scale introduction in Feb. 2001).

2001 Nov. FamilyMart establishes IFJ Co., Ltd. (currently Famima Credit 

Corporation), a credit card company.

2002 Feb. Taiwan FamilyMart is listed on the GreTai Securities Market, an 

over-the-counter stock market in Taiwan.

 May FamilyMart introduces an IC card (JUPI card).

2003 Dec. FamilyMart becomes the first convenience store chain of 

Japanese origin to reach 10,000 stores in Asia.

2004 May FamilyMart jointly establishes Shanghai FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

(China), in cooperation with four partners—Tinghsin (Cayman 

Islands) Holding Corporation; Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd.; ITO-

CHU Corporation; and CITIC Trust & Investment Co., Ltd.

 Oct. FamilyMart introduces its Famima Card.

 Oct. FamilyMart jointly establishes FAMIMA CORPORATION (U.S.A.) 

in cooperation with two partners—ITOCHU Corporation and 

ITOCHU International Inc. (U.S.A.).

2005 Sept. Number of stores accepting Suica e-money successively 

increases in the Tokyo and Sendai areas.

2006 Feb. FamilyMart and Sapporo-based company Maruyo Nishio Co., 

Ltd. Jointly establish Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

 July Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd. begins the development of 

FamilyMart stores in Hokkaido. With this, FamilyMart finally 

extends its store network to every one of Japan’s 47 prefectures.

 Sept. FamilyMart’s 25th anniversary of establishment with drafting 

of new Basic Principles.

 Sept. FamilyMart jointly establishes Guangzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

(China), in cooperation with three partners — Ting Chuan 

(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp., Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd., 

and ITOCHU Corporation.

2007 July FamilyMart jointly establishes Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd. 

(China), in cooperation with three partners — Ting Chuan 

(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp., Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd., 

and ITOCHU Corporation.

 Nov. FamilyMart introduces its Famima T Card.

Corporate History
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Share Price Range and Number of Shares Traded

Investor Information

 Number

 of Shares  Shareholdings

Name of Shareholders (thousands) (%)

Family Corporation Inc. 29,941  30.7

Mellon Bank, N.A. Treaty Clients Omnibus 6,540  6.7

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 4,113  4.2

NTT DoCoMo, Inc. 2,931 3.0

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 2,835  2.9

Nomura Securities Co., Ltd. 2,199  2.3

Mizuho Bank, Ltd. 2,085  2.1

Nippon Life Insurance Company 1,964  2.0

Mellon Bank, N.A. as Agent for its Client

Mellon Omnibus US Pension 
1,476  1.5

Dresdner Kleinwort (Japan) Limited,

Tokyo Branch 
1,421  1.4

Total 55,505  56.8

Corporate name: FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Head offi  ce:  1-1, Higashi-Ikebukuro 3-chome, 
Toshima-ku, Tokyo 170-6017, Japan 
Telephone: (81) 3-3989-6600

Incorporated: September 1, 1981

Paid-in capital: ¥16,659 million

Fiscal year: March 1st to the last day of February

Number of full-time
employees: 

2,850

Authorized shares: 250,000,000

Issued shares:  97,683,133 (Treasury stock: 2,358,840 shares)

Number of
shareholders: 

14,933

Stock exchange
listing: 

Tokyo Stock Exchange, First Section

Securities code: 8028

Trading unit of shares: 100 shares

Transfer agent:  The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. 

Independent auditors: Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Ordinary general meeting 
of shareholders: 

May each year

Corporate Data (non-consolidated) Principal Shareholders

Distribution of the Shares

(As of February 29, 2008) (As of February 29, 2008)

(As of February 29, 2008)

Notes:  1. In addition to the above, the Company also holds 2,358,840 shares in treasury.

2.  Figures under the shareholdings represent shares as a percentage of total number of issued 

shares.

Taiwan FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (Taiwan)

BOKWANG FAMILYMART CO., LTD. (South Korea)

Siam FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (Thailand)

Shanghai FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (China)

FAMIMA CORPORATION (U.S.A.)

Guangzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (China)

Suzhou FamilyMart Co., Ltd. (China)

Overseas Area Franchisers

Okinawa FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Minami Kyushu FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Hokkaido FamilyMart Co., Ltd.

Domestic Area Franchisers

*Excluding shares of less than one trading unit
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